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Revenues were 53243 - . Income from continuing
million and volumes operations was $13.5

grew 9% _ million an.increase of

169% R 2006 HIGHLIGHTS

During 2006, we opened a new facility in Brishane, Australia. We expanded our Bavshore Industrial facility in
LaPuorte, Texas, increasing capacity there by approximately 10%. Our Board of Dircctors approved establishing
an operation in Dubai, and expanding our operating facility in Malagsia. The Malaysian expansion will essentially
double its productive capacity. We believe the returns on these investments will be very satisfactory.  Both the

Dubai facility aud the Malaysian expansion should be operational sometime in fiscal vear 2007.

Investment in owr business includes substantial invesument in working capital including inventory, accounts
receivable and accounts payable. We belicve we can make substantial improvement in how effectively we manage
working capital, and we intend to do so over the next 12-24 months.

-

People: “Teople are our most important asset” is not just a phrase at [CO. Attracting and motivating the right
prople for 1CO is our most significant challenge. We know that in order to grow our business we need wlented,
dedicated people in all facets of our business. We invest in training our people and helping them grow. We also

have fair and reasonable rewards for performance and good exccttion.

Sound corporate governance committed to growing sharcholder value: We pride oursclves on having
a strong corporate governance environment. Furthermore, we believe our managers are appropriately motivated

through incentive and other compensation plans, and are well aligned with the owners of the business.

During the lirst quarter of fiscal year 2007, we repurchased approximately 85% of our Preferred Stock at a price
which we believe was attractive, We closed a new financing facility in the United States that provides up 1o $45
million in credic on attractive terms, an increase of $20 million over the previous facility. We also sertled an
crvironmental dispute with National Oilwell Varco relating to our sale of the oilficld service operations in fiscal

yeur 2002,

Conhdence: we begin 2007 with confidence in our team and our position in the market. We will remain
focused on providing quatity products and services, and assisting our customers in product development. Resin
prices will rise and fall, and our customer orders will vary accordingly, but over the cowrse of the year, we're

expecting a sustainable growth in our business worldwide.

In closing, we extend our sincere appreciation to our customers, suppliers, and employees for all their effores in

4

A.John Knapp Jr.
President & Chief Executive Officer

2006. We look forward 1o working together in 2007,




TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES, AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS:

FISCAL YEAR 2006 WAS A VERY STRONG YEAR FOR ICO. OUR VOLUMES AND
REVENUES GREW 9%, AND QUR OPERATING RESULTS IMPROVED DRAMATICALLY.
WE ARE OPTIMISTIC THAT WE CAN CONTINUE TO GROW IN 2007 AND BEYOND.

Focus: We continue 1o focus our efforts throughout the globe on reaching customers that need assistance
with new product developnient or solutions to manufacturing or technical challenges, and who ean leverage
our global plattorm. We count among our customers many of the major multi-national firms involved in the
polymers business. We also have many specialty customers who offer unique, leading edge products. We
strive (o support these customers by providing them with products or services that help them succeed. In

uther words, we focus on customers and innovative solutions,

Ol)cl‘iltillg results: We put effort into controlling our costs, so that an increase in volumes, combined with
operating leverage, will produce very attractive incremental profiability. To illustrate, in fiscal year 20006: we
grew volumes 9% and our gross profit increased 18%, while operating income improved 160% w0 §21.3

million.

Suppliers: We buy [rom the producers ol high quality resins throughout the world, and we work hard 10

muaintain and enhance the relationships with these suppliers. They are vur partners,

Investment: We scek to invest in state-of-the-art equipment that improves our productivity and increases
productive cupacity in existing markets, we invest in new markets with attractive growth characteristics, and

we will continue 1o seck such apportunities. Importamly, we strive 10 allocate capital within our business to

the highest return opportunities. In the long run, this is how we will create value for our sharcholders.
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PART 1
Item 1. Business

General

1CO, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries “the Company”) was incorporated in 1978 under the laws of the state of Texas.
The Company manufactures specialty resins and concentrates and provides specialized polymers processing services. The specialty
resins manufactured by the Company are typically produced into a powder form. Concentrates produced by the Company generally
are mixed by customers with base polymer film resins to give plastic films desired characteristics, and 1o reduce customers’ raw
material costs. Concentrates are polymers loaded with high levels of chemical and organic additives that are melt blended into base
resing to give plastic films and other finished products desired physical properties. The Company also provides toll processing
services including ambient grinding, jet milling, compounding and ancillary services for polymer resins produced in pellet form as
well as other material. These products and services are provided through our 18 operating facilities located in 9 countries in North
America, Europe, Australasia and South America. The Company’s customers include major chemical companies, polymer
production affiliates of major oil exploration and production companies, and manufacturers of plastic products.

Manufacturing Capabilities

The Company’s manufacturing capabilities include size reduction, compounding and related services, These services are
an intermediate step between the production of polymer resins and the manufacture of a wide variety of products such as toys,
water tanks, paint, garbage bags, plastic film or other polymer products. The Company’s manufacturing processes are used to
produce powders for sale by the Company, for toll processing services and to manufacture concentrates.

Size reduction. Size reduction is a grinding process whereby polymer resins produced by chemical manufacturers in pellet
form are reduced to a powder torm, The majority of the Company’s size reduction services involve ambient grinding, a mechanical
attrition milling process suitable for products which do not require ultrafine particle size and are not highly heat sensitive. The
Company also provides jet milling services used for products requiring very fine particle size such as additives for printing ink,
adhesives, waxes and cosmetics. Jet milling uses high velocity compressed air to reduce materials to sizes between 0.5 and 150
microns. For materials with special thermal characteristics (such as heat sensitive materials), the Company provides cryogenic
milling services, which use liquid nitrogen to chill materials to extremely low temperatures,

The Company primarily processes polyethylene. Other materials processed include polyester, polypropylene, nylon,
fluorocarbons, cellulose acetates, vinyls, phenolics, polyurethane, acrylics, epoxies, and waxes.

Compounding. Compounding is an extrusion process whereby plastics and other additives are melt blended together to
form an alloy resin.  Often times the Company compounds material in conjunction with providing size reduction services
(typically using an ambient grinding process). For example, the Company serves many customers by purchasing natural colored
resin, compounding certain additives into the resin, and then grinding the resulting pellet into a powder form. The additives
compounded into the base resins are determined by the end products to be manufactured by the customer. Compounding is
performed within substantially all of the Company’s facilities.

Manufacturing concentrates 1s a specialized form of compounding. Bayshore Industrial, the Company’s largest
concentrate manufacturing operation, 15 located in La Porte, Texas. Bayshore produces concentrates for the plastic film industry.
The Company also has a smaller concentrate manufacturing operation, located in Oyonnax, France, which provides high quality
color matching and color compounding services for the injection molding industry. The Company’s concentrate manufacturing
operations involve the formulation and production of highly concentrated compounds of additives that are then combined (by the
Company or by others) with polymer resins to produce materials having specifically desired characteristics, such as anti-blocking
(to prevent plastic film or sheets from sticking together), flame-retardance, color, ultraviolet stabilization, impact and tear
resistance, or adhesion. The Company's concentrates are produced to the detailed specifications of customers. These customers are
typically resin producers or companies that produce plastic films. The concentrate manufacturing process requires the combination
of up to 25 different additives or fillers in precise proportions. To be approved as the manufacturer of such concentrates, the
Company must satisfy rigorous qualification procedures imposed by customers on a product-by-product basis. The Company works
closely with its concentrate customers to research, develop and test the formulations necessary to create the desired characteristics




of the concentrates to be produced. Such concentrates are produced in batches which may range from as little as five pounds fora
lab sample to as large as four million pounds.

Other Manufacturing Services. The Company also offers its customers ancillary polymer processing services in connection
with siz¢ reduction and compounding services. These ancillary services include dry blending and mixing of plastics and other
additives, granulating, packaging and warchousing.

Facilities. The Company operates seven facilities in the United States, six in Europe (located in The Netherlands, England,
Italy. and France), four in Australasia (Jocated in New Zealand, Australia and Malaysia) and one in Brazil. Almost all of these
operations provide toll processing services, sell products into their markets and are able to compound materials.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2007, the Company entered into a lease agreement for a production facility in Dubai,
UAE. This facility will provide size reduction and compounding services to the rotational molding industry in the region.

Products and Services

Product Sales. The powders produced by the Company in its manufacturing operations are most often used to manufacture
household items (such as toys, household furniture and trash receptacles), automobile parts, agricultural products (such as fertilizer
and water tanks), paint and metat and fabric coatings. Currently, the largest powder sales markets of the Company include Western
Europe, Australia, New Zealand, Malaysia, the United States and Brazil. The Company also exports its powders into Africa, the
Middle East, and Asia. The Company generally procures the raw materials for its own account and adds value using its own
formulations and processes to produce powders. The Company usually performs both size reduction and compounding to produce
its lnished products.

The Company’s concentrate products are primarily used by third parties to produce plastic films. These products are
mostly sotd throughout North America. The Company’s small operation in Oyonnax, France provides high quality color
concentrates to the injection molding industry in France.

Toll Processing Services. Toll processing services involve processing customer-owned raw materials, rather than
Company-owned raw materials. These toli processing services include size reduction, compounding and related services such as
granulating and blending on a service fee basis.

Customers and Pricing

The primary customers of the Company's polymers processing business are large producers of polymers (which include
major chemical companies and polymers production affiliates of major oil production companies) and end users such as rotational
molders. No single customer accounted for more than 10% of worldwide sales during fiscal years 2006, 2005 or 2004. The
Company has long-term contract arrangements with many polymers processing customers whereby it has agreed to process or
manufacture certain polymer products for a single or multi-year term at an agreed-upon fee structure.

The rotational molding industry is one of the Company’s more important target markets. The Company provides a
significant portion of its size reduction toll processing services to customers that are either rotational melders or that supply the
rotational melding industry. Additionally, many of the polymer powders manufactured by the Company are supplied to the
rotational molding industry. Rotational molding produces plastic products by melting pre-measured plastic powder in molds which
arc hecated in an oven while being rotated. The melting resin adheres to the hot mold and evenly coats the mold’s surface. This
process ofters design advantages over other molding pracesses, such as injection molding, because assembly of multiple parts is
unnecessary, consistent wall thickness in the finished product can be maintained, tooling is less expensive, and molds do not need
10 be designed to withstand the high pressures inherent in other forms of molding. Examples of end products which are rotationally
molded include agricultural tanks, toys and small recreational watercraft.

Other target markets include producers of automotive carpet backing, paint, waxes, and metal and fabric coatings.
The Company is also a major supplier of concentrates to the plastic film industry in North America, The concentrates

manufuaciured by the Company arc melt-blended into base resins to produce plastic film having the desired characteristics. The
Company sells concentrates to both resin producers and to businesses that manufacture plastic films.




The Company provides value-added polymer processing services to customers, The Company often purchases and takes
into inventory the raw materials necessary to manufacture products sold to customers. The Company seeks to minimize the risk of
price fluctuations in raw materials and other supplies by maintaining relatively short order cycles; however, maintaining raw
materials and finished goods inventory exposes the Company to an increased risk of price fluctuations (see "Raw Materials").

Sales and Marketing

The Company markets its products and services through a sales force of employees. These sales people are responsible for
in-depth customer contact and are required to be technically knowledgeable and have an understanding of the markets they serve.

Competition

The specialty polymers processing business is highly competitive. Competition is based principally on price, quality of
service. manutacturing technology, proximity to markets, timely delivery and customer service and support. The Company's size
reduction and toll scrvices competitors are generally smaller than the Company and have fewer locations and a more regional
emphasis. The Company’s competitors in the polymer powder sales business tend to be mid-sized to large companies. Several
companies also maintain significant in-house size reduction facilities for their own use. The Company believes that it has been
able to compete effectively in its markets based on competitive pricing, its network of plants, its technical expertise and equipment
manufacturing capabilities and its range of services, such as flexible storage, packaging facilities, and product development. The
Company also believes that its knowledge of the rotational molding industry, through activities such as participation in the
Association ol Rotational Molders, enhances its competitive position with this key customer group. The Company's competitors in
the concentrates industry include a number of large enterprises, as well as smali and mid-sized regional companies. The Company
believes its technical expertise, processing efficiency, high quality product, customer support and pricing have enabled it to
compete successiully in this market.

The ambient size reduction tolling business lacks substantial barriers to entry, but cryogenic grinding and jet milling
require a more significant investment and greater technical expertise. The compounding business, including concentrates
manufacturing, requires a substantial investment in equipment, as well as extensive technical and mechanical expertise. In general,
many of the Company's customers could perform the specialized polymers processing services provided by the Company for
themselves it they chose to do so, and new competitors may enter the market from time to time. A number of the Company's
competitors and potential competitors in this segment have substantially greater financial and other resources than the Company.

Business Divestitures

On September 6, 2002, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of the Company’s oilfield services (*Qilfield
Services”) business to National Oilwell Varco, Inc., formerly Varco International, Inc. ("NOV”). On July 31, 2003, the Company sold
its remaining Oilfield Services business to Permian Enterprises, Ltd. Between May 2003 and March 2004, NOV asserted
approximately 30 ¢laims for contractual indemnity against the Company in connection with the September 2002 sale of substantially all
of the Company’s Qilfield Services business with a loss range between $16.4 million and $22.0 million. These claims primarily related
to environmental conditions as defined in the purchase agreement pursuant to which the Company sold its Oilfield Services busingss to
NOV. On November 21, 2006, the Company settled these claims with NOV for $7.5 million consisting of: a cash payment of $1.1
million; release to NOV of the $5.4 million held in escrow; and a $1.0 million note payable in one year. See “Item 3. Legal
Proceedings” and “ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for more
information,

Environmental Regulation

The Company is subject to numerous and changing local, state, federal and foreign laws and regulations concerning the
use, storage, treatment, disposal and general handling of materials, some of which may be considered to be hazardous substances
and wastes, and restrictions concerning the release of pollutants and contaminants into the environment. These laws and regulations
nay require the Company to obtain and maintain certain permits and other authorizations mandating procedures under which the
Company must operate and restrict emissions and discharges. Many of these laws and regulations provide for strict joint and
several liabilitics for the costs of cleaning up contamination resulting from releases of regulated materials, substances and wastes
into the environment. Violation of these laws and regulations as well as terms and conditions of operating permits issued to the
Company may result in the imposition of administrative, civil, and criminal penalties and fines, remedial actions or, in more sericus
situations, shutdowns or revocation of permits or authorizations. The Company believes that future compliance by its operating




businesses with existing laws and regulations will not have a material adverse effect on the Company and that future capital
expenditures for environmental remediation will not be material.

The Company regularly monitors and reviews its operations, procedures and policies for compliance with environmental
laws and regulations and the Company's operating permits. There can be no assurance that a review of the Company's past, present
or future operations by courts or federal, state, local or foreign regulatory authorities will not result in detcrminations that could
have a material adverse effect on the Company. In addition, the revocation of any of the Company’s material operating permits, the
denial of any material permit application or the failure to renew any interim permit, could have a material adverse effect on the
Company. In addition, compliance with more stringent environmental laws and regulations, more vigorous enforcement policies, or
stricter interpretations of current laws and regulations, or the occurrence of an industrial accident, could have a material adverse
effect on the Company. Also, see the discussion concerning environmental remediation issues, including those related to the sale
of its former Qilfield Services business, in “ltem 3. Legal Proceedings.”

Insurance and Risk

Except for warranties implied by law, the Company does not generally expressly warrant the products and services it
provides. Nonetheless, if the Company were found to have been negligent, or to have breached its obligations to its customers, or if
warranties are implied as a matter-of-law (notwithstanding any disclaimer of warranty), the Company could be exposed to
significant liabilities and its reputation could be adversely affected. Likewise, the Company's activities as a vendor of specialty
polymers products may result in liability on account of defective products. While the Company has an insurance program in effect
to address some of these risks, the insurance coverage is subject to applicable deductibles, exclusions, limitations on coverage and
policy limits. The occurrence of a significant adverse event, the risks of which are not fully covered by insurance, could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s {inancial condition, results of operations or net cash flows, Moreover, no assurance can
be given that the Company will be able to maintain adequate insurance in the future at rates it considers reasonable. See “Item 3.
Legal Proceedings.”

Raw Materials

The Company purchases and takes into inventory the resins, additives and other materials used in ils concentrates
manufacturing and a portion of'its specialty polymers distribution business. These materials are subject to fluctuating availability
and prices. The Company believes that these and other materials used in its operations are available from numerous sources and are
available to meet its needs. In addition, the Company believes its relationships with its suppliers are good.

Patents, Trademarks and Licenses

The Company holds one United States patent, one United Kingdom patent, one Australian patent, and one New Zealand
patent covering proprietary technology utilized in certain of its services. The Company believes that its patents are valid and that
the duration of its existing patents is satisfactory; however, the Company does not believe any single patent is essential to the
overall successful operation of the Company's business, and the Company's polymers processing operations are not materially
dependent upon any patents, trademarks, or licenses. However, no assurance can be given that one or more of the Company's
competitors may not be able to develop or preduce processes or products of comparable or greater quality to those developed or
produced by the Company; that the Company’s patents will not be modified, revoked, or found to be invalid; or that others will not
claim that the Company’s products or processes infringe upon or use the intellectual property of others.

Employees

As of November 30, 2006, the Company employed approximately 831 full-time, part-time and temporary employees, 405
of which are located in the United States. Certain employees working in [taly, France, The Netherlands, New Zealand, Australia,
and Brazil are parties to collective bargaining agreements. None of the other employees are represented by a union. The Company
has experienced no significant strikes or work stoppages during the past fiscal year and considers its relations with its employees to
be satisfactory.




Financial Information About Geographic Areas

The Company's management structure and reportable segments are organized into five business segments defined as 1CO
Polymers North America, ICO Brazil, Bayshore Industrial, ICO Europe and 1CO Courtenay - Australasia. This organization is
consistent with the way information is reviewed and decisions are made by executive management. Financial information about the
Company’s segments is found in Note 20 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Staterments.

Available Information

The Company’s [nternet website is http://www.icopolymers.com. Information contained on the Company’s website is not part
of this report or any other report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company makes available free of charge,
through its [nternet website, the Company’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-
K, as well as its other SEC filings, as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing such materials with or furnishing them to
the SEC. In addition, the Company makes available through its Internet website the Company’s Code of Business Ethics and the
written charters of the Audit, Compensation and Nominating Committees of its Board of Directors, all of which are available in print to
any stockholder who requests them by contacting the Company’s Corporate Secretary at 1811 Bering Drive, Suite 200, Houston,
Texas, 77057,

Item 1A. Risk Factors

The Company’s indebtedness subjects it to restrictive covenants and may limit its ability to borrow additional funds and
efficiently operate the business.

The Company’s domestic credil facility (“Credit Facility”) in place as of October 27, 2006 contains a number of covenants
including, among others, limitations on the ability of the Company and its restricted U.S. subsidiaries to (i) incur additional
indebtedness, (ii) pay dividends or redeem any common stock, (iii) incur liens or other encumbrances on their assets, (iv) enter into
transactions with affiliates, (v) merge with or into any other entity or (vi) sell any of their assets. In addition, any “change of control”
of the Company or its restricted subsidiaries will constitute a default under the Credit Facility. —*“Change of control,” as defined in the
credit agreement (“Credit Agreement”} establishing the Credit Facility, ts summarized as follows: (i) the acquisition of, or, if earlier,
the shareholder or director approval of the acquisition of, ownership or voting control, directly or indirectly, beneficially or of record,
by any person, entity or group (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 of the SEC under the 1934 Act, as then in effect), of shares
representing more than 509 of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by the issued and outstanding common stock of the
Company; (ii) the occupation of a majority of the scats (other than vacant seats) on the board of directors of the Company by
individuals who were neither (A) nominated by the Company’s board of directors nor (B) appointed by directors so nominated; (iii) the
occurrence of a change in control, or other similar provision, under or with respect to any “Material Indebtedness Agreement” (as
defined in the Credit Agreement); or (iv) the failure of the Company to own directly or indirectly, all of the outstanding equity interests
of the Company's Bayshore Industrial L.P. and 1CO Polymers North America, Inc. subsidiaries.

Changes in the cost and availability of polymers could adversely affect the Company.

Polymers (i.e., resins) are a key ingredient of the Company’s products, and changes in the cost and availability of resins
(generally produced by the major chemical companies) are outside of the Company’s control. If resin costs increase, whether
because of higher oil and gas prices or because of lower supplies, the Company may be forced to increase the prices at which it
sells its products to our customers. An increase in our prices may result in lower customer demand for our products and could have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations. Additionally, higher resin prices will lead to higher working
capital requirements which could result in higher debt and associated interest expense. On the other hand, a perception that resin
costs will be declining in the near future may, in the short term, result in a decrease in customer demand for our products as
customers wait tor lower resin prices to be reflected in the price of our products, which could also have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s results of operations.

Changes in economic activity could adversely affect the Company.

The Company’s business cycles are affected by changes in the level of economic activity in the various regions in which
the Company operates. The Company’s business cycles are generally volatile and relatively unpredictable. In addition, the
Company is affected by cycles n the petroleum and oil and gas industries. The length of these business cycles is outside of the
Company’s control, and can have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations and cash flow.




The Company’s success is partly dependent upon the Company’s ability to develop superior proprietary technology, know-how
and trade secrets,

The operations of the Company’s business are dependent to a certain degree upon proprietary technology, know-how and
trade secrets developed by the Company. In many cases, these or equivalent processes or technologies are available to the
Company’s competitors, customers and others. In addition, there can be no assurance that such persons will not develop
substantially equivalent or superior proprietary processes and technologies, or that the Company’s trade secrets will not lose their
proprietary status. The availability to, or development by others of equivalent or superior information, processes or technologies,
or the failure to maintain the trade secret status of the Company’s proprietary technologies and information, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company,

The failure to properly manage inventories could expose the Company to material financial losses.

The Company’s product sales business, including the Company’s concentrate manufacturing operations, requires the
Company to buy inventories of supplies and products and to manage the risk of ownership of commodity inventories having
fluctuating market values. The maintenance of excessive inventories in these businesses could expose the Company to losses from
drops in market prices for its products, while maintenance of insufficient inventories may result in lost sales to the Company.

International events may hurt the Company’s operations.

A majority of the Company’s current operations is conducted in international markets, particularly the Company’s ICO
Europe, 1CO Brazil, and 1CO Courtenay- Australasia business segments. The Company expects to continue to seck to expand its
international operations, primarily through internal growth. The Company’s international operations are subject to certain political,
economic and other uncertainties normally associaled with international operations, including among others, risks of government
policies regarding private property, taxation policies, foreign exchange restrictions and currency fluctuations and other restrictions
arising out of foreign governmental sovereignty over areas in which the Company conducts business that may limit or disrupt
markets, restrict the movement of tunds or result in the deprivation of contract rights, and, possibly, civil disturbance or other forms
of conflict. Losses from the factors above could be material in those countries where the Company now has or may in the future
have a concentration of assets.

Due to the Company’s lack of asset diversification, adverse developments in its industry could materially adversely impact the
Company's operations.

The Company relies primarily on the revenues generated in the polymer processing industry. Due to its lack of asset
diversification, an adverse development in this industry would likely have a significantly greater impact on the Company’s
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows than if it maintained more diverse assets.

The Company’s success depends on attracting and maintaining key personnel; the failure fo do so could disrupt the Company’s
business operations.

The Company’s success depends upon our ability to retain and attract experienced and knowledgeable management and other
professional staff. The Company’s results of operations depend to a large extent on the efforts, technical expertise and continued
employment of key personnel and members of our management team. If we are unable to attract and retain experienced and
knowledgeable personnel or a significant number of our existing key personnel resign or become unable to continue in their present
role without adequate replacements, our business operations could be adversely affected.




Goodwill impairment could occur in the future.

If our goodwill becomes impaired the Company may be required to record a significant charge to carnings. Under generally
accepied accounting principles, goodwill is required to be tested for impairment at least annually. We may be required to record a
significant charge to earnings in our financial statements during a period in which any impairment of our goodwill is determined.

The Company is prohibited from paying dividends on its Common Stock or redeeming or repurchasing any of its Common Stock
until dividends in arrears on the Preferred Stock are paid.

As of September 30, 2006, the Company owed an aggregate of $8.2 million of dividends in arrears to the holders of the
Company’s $6.75 Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock™). Subsequent to September 30, 2006, the
Company repurchased 84.8% of the outstanding Preferred Stock, thereby reducing the dividends in arrears to $1.2 million. Such
undeciared or unpaid Preferred Stock dividends will need ta be declared and paid before the Company can pay a dividend on its
Common Stock or redeem or repurchase any of its common stock. Payment of any dividends in arrcars will depend on the financial
condition, results of operations and capital requirements of the Company, as well as other factors deemed relevant by the Board of
Directors, and there can be no assurance that the Board of Directors will declare dividends on the Preferred Stock in the future.

The Company may have additional tax liabilities.

The Company is subject to income taxes in both the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgment is
required in determining our worldwide provision for income taxes. Although the Company believes its tax estimates are reasonable,
the final determination of tax audits and any related litigation could be materially different than that which is reflected in historical
income tax provisions and accruals, Based on the results of an audit or litigation, a material adverse effect on the Company’s income
tax provision, net income, or cash flows in the period or periods for which that determination is made could result.

Operational risks such as personal injury, property damages, pollution and environmental damages could adversely affect the
Company’s husiness.

The operations of the Company involve many risks, which, even through a combination of experience, knowledge and
careful evaluation, may not be overcome. These risks include equipment or product failures or work related accidents which could
also result in personal injury. property damages, pollution and other environmental risks. The Company may not be fully insured
against possible losses pursuant to such risks. Such losses could have a material adverse impact on the Company. [n addition,
from time to time, the Company is involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of its business and is
currenily involved in numerous legal proceedings in connection with its operations and those of its acquired and disposed of
companies. There can be no assurance that the Company will not incur substantial liability as a result of these or other
proceedings. The Company is subject to numerous and changing local, state, federal and foreign laws and regulations concerning
the use, storage, treatment, disposal and general handling of hazardous materials, some of which may be considered to be
hazardous wastes, and restricting releases of pollutants and contaminants into the environment. These laws and regulations may
require the Company to obtain and maintain certain permits and other authorizations mandating procedures under which the
Company will operate and restricting emissions. Many of'these laws and regulations provide for strict joint and several liability for
the costs of cleaning up contamination resulting from rcleases of regulated materials into the environment. Violations of
mandatory procedures under operating permits may result in fines, remedial actions or, in more serious instances, shutdowns or
revocation of permits or authorizations. There can be no assurance that a review of the Company’s past, present or future
operations by courts or federal, state, local or foreign regulatory authorities will not result in determinations that could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. In addition, the revocation of any
of the Company’s material operaling permits, the denial of any material permit application or the failure to renew any material
interim permit could have a material adverse effect on the Company. The Company cannot predict what environmental laws and
regulations will be enacted or adopted in the future or how such future law or regulation will be administered or interpreted. To
date, the Company has incurred compliance and clean-up costs in connection with environmental laws and regulations and there
can be no assurance as to future costs. [n particular, compliance with more stringent environmental laws and regulations, more
vigorous enforcement policies, or stricter interpretations of current laws and regulations, or the occurrence of an industrial accident,
could have a material adverse effect on the Company.




Future environmental, personal injury, and other claims relating to the Company’s former Oilfield Services business could
adversely affect the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and/or cash flows.

In 2002, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of the Company’s oilfield services (“Qilfield Services”) business
to National Oilwell Varco, Inc., formerly Varco International, Inc. (“NOV™). In 2003, the Company sold its remaining Oilfield
Services business to Permian Enterprises, Ltd. (“Permian™). NOV and Permian purchased the assets and business of the Company’s
Oilfield Services business, but only acquired limited responsibility for liabilities of the Company’s former Qilfield Services business
relating to events occurring prior to the closing of the referenced divestitures. Among the pre-closing liabilities retained by the
Company are potential environmental claims including, without limitation, Superfund claims relating to off-site disposal of hazardous
materials prior to the Closing, potential claims by employees, contractors, and others for occupational injuries, as well as other types of
claims. There are currently no Superfund claims or other environmental claims pending against the Company that are expected to have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, except as described under the heading “Environmental Claims” in “Item 3. Legal
Proceedings” below. There are currently no silicosis or other occupational injury claims pending that are expected to have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s business. However, since the late 1990’s the Company has settled claims of approximately thirty-
five former employees of the Company’s former Oilfield Services business who allegedly sustained personal injuries and/death as a
result of occupational exposure to silica, and in the past the Company has been a party to and settled other environmental and
occupational injury claims refated to the Company’s former Qilfield Services business. There can be no assurance that in the future
there will not be new environmental claims, occupational injury claims, or other claims, including resulting from activities or
conditions involving the Company’s former Oilfield Services business and occurring prior to the sale of the Qilfteld Services
business. having a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations and/or cash flows.

Competition in our industry is intense, and we are smaller and have a more limited operating history than some of our competitors.

The industry in which the Company operates is highly competitive. Some competitors or potential competitors of the
Company have substantially greater financial or other resources than the Company. Larger competitors may be able to absorb the
burden of any changes in federal, state and local laws and regulations or rising costs of raw materials more easily than we can, which
would adversely affect our competitive position. The inability of the Company to effectively compete in its markets would have a
material adverse effect on the Company.

Certain litigation matters could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and/or cash

Hows.

The Company is party to various legal proceedings. There can be no assurance that adverse results in such matters will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings.”

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.




Item 2. Properties

The location and approximate acreage of the Company's operating facilities at November 30, 2006, together with an indication
of the services performed at such facilities are set forth below. Other than the Company’s corporate headquarters in Houston, Texas,
all propertics consist of polymers processing facilities with adjacent offices. The “Services” column below describes the services either

performed for customers at the location or performed on Company-owned materials to produce the Company’s products.

The Company’s Bayshore [ndustrial segment owns and operates the La Porte, Texas location; all other U.S. locations (other
than the corporate headquarters) are operated by the Company's ICO Polymers North America segment. The Australian, New Zealand,
Malaysian and Dubai locations are operated by the Company’s 1CO-Courtenay Australasian segment. The six European locations are
operated by the Company s ICO Europe segment, and the property leased in Brazil is the sole location of the Company’s 1CO Brazil

scgment.

Properties Owned:

Location

Bloomsbury., NJ ..o
China, TX o,
East Chicago, IN. ..o
Fontana, CA. oo
Gainsborough, England ...
Girand Junction, TN .._.......
La Porte, TX o

Montereaw, France ..o,

Oyonnax, France ...,
*s-Gravendeel, The Netherlands .....ooovvee .

Verolanuova, Ialy .o,

Properties Leased:

Location

Houston, Texas...corimmm e,
Beaucaire, France ...
Auckland, New Zeatand
Batu Pahat, Malaysia.......cooinnininiinn.
Contagem. Brazil.....ooiiin,
Melbourne, Australia..........cooov oo
Brisbane, Australia .........ocoveveeis e,
Dubiai, UAE i

N/A = Not applicable

The leased properties listed above have various expiration dates through 2016. The Company is currently operating most
of its facilities (with the exception of its Bayshore Industrial, La Porte, Texas location) below full capacity which allows the
Company to increase its level of volumes utilizing existing facilities. Most of the polymers processing facilities are operating 24

hours per day, tive days per week.

Services

Size reduction

Size reduction and compounding
Size reduction and compounding
Size reduction and compounding
Size reduction, compounding and technical services
Size reduction

Compounding

Size reduction and compounding
Compounding

Size reduction and compounding

Size reduction and compounding

Total Acreage and Square Footage Owned

Services

Corporate headquarters

Size reduction

Size reduction and compounding
Size reduction and compounding
Size reduction and compounding
Size reduction and compounding
Size reduction and compounding

Size reduction and compounding in mid-FY 2007

Total Acreage and Square Footage Leased

Total Acreage and Square Footage Owned and Leased

Facility

Square

15 99.408
13 108,500
4 73.000

7 44,727

8 102,500

5 127,900
39 220,500
4 53,259

l 26,898

5 240,773
11 140,313
112 1,237,778
Facility

Square

Acres Footage
N/A 9,740
5 72,088

1 24,010

2 61.200

1 23,680

2 72.316

1 18,256

1 25,570
13 306,860
125 1,544,638




Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Varco Indemnification Claims. Between May 2003 and March 2004, approximately 30 claims for contractual indemnity were
asserted against the Company by Varco International. Inc, (n/k/a National Oilwell Varco, Inc., hereinafter “NOV*") in connection with
the September 2002 sale of substantially all of the Company's oilficld services ("Qilfield Services") business to NOV. NOV's
indemnity demands were based on its contention that the Company breached a number of representations and warranties in the
purchase agreement dated July 2, 2002 pursuant to which the Company sold the Qilfield Services business to NOV (the “Purchase
Agreement”)and that certain expenses or damages that NOV has incurred or may incur in the future constitute "excluded liabilitics” as
detined in the Purchase Agreement. NOV alleged that the expected loss range for its indemnity claims was between $16.4 million and
$22.0 million. A portion of those indemnity demands (representing aggregate losses of approximately $0.4 million) related to product
liability claims. The balance of the indemnity demands related to alleged historical contamination or alleged non-comphiance with
environmental rules at approximately 26 former Company properties located in both the United States and Canada.

The Company’s contractual indemnification obligation to NOV was subject to certain limitations, including the obligation of
NOV 10 bear 50% of any losses relating to environmental matters in excess of the $1.0 million threshold, up to a maximum aggregate
loss borne by NOV in respect of such environmental matters of $4.0 million (in addition to the $1.0 million threshold). At the time of
the sale in September 2002, the Company had placed $5.0 million of the sale proceeds in escrow to be used to pay for indemnification
obligations. should they arise. The $5.0 million in proceeds was included in the gain on the sale of the Qilfield Services business
recognized in fiscal year 2002. In the third quarter of fiscal 2004 the Company deemed the $5.0 million receivable of the escrowed
sales proceeds Lo be a doubtful collection, due to the continued inability of the parties to reach an agreement regarding the size of
NOV’s indemnifiable loss. The $5.0 million reserve, net of income taxes, was recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as
a compenent of loss from discontinued operations.

On November 21, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement settling all of the pending indemnity claims asserted by
NOV. In exchange for a complete release of claims and indemnity agreement, the Company agreed 1o a $7.5 million payment
consisting of> a cash payment of approximately $1.1 million; release to NOV of the approximately $5.4 million currently held in
escrow (consisting of the $5.0 million of sales proceeds placed in escrow for potential indemnity obligations plus interest): and a $1.0
million note payable in one year. As a result of the settlement, the Company recognized a pre-tax charge through discontinued
operations of 52,1 million ($1.4 million after taxes) during its fiscal fourth quarter ended September 30, 2006. Pursuant to the
settlement agreement, the Company is absolved of and shall be indemnified for NOV’s indemnity claims previously asserted, as well as
specified future environmental liabilities relating to the propertics transferred to NOV and its affiliates; however, except as set forth in
the settlement agreement, the Comnpany continues to be responsible for “excluded liabilities™ as defined in the Purchase Agreement.

Thibadaux Litigation. Since September 2004, the Company has been a defendant in litigation pending in District Court in the
Parish of Orleans, Louisiana (the “Thibodaux Lawsuit™) filed by C.M. Thibodaux Company (“Thibodaux™). Other defendants in the
case include Intracoastal Tubular Services, Inc. (“ITCO™), thirty different oil companies (the “Oil Company Defendants™), several
insurance companies and four trucking companies. Thibodaux, the owner of industrial property located in Amelia, Louisiana that has
historically been leased to tenants conducting oilfield services businesses, contends that the property has been contaminated with
naturally occurring radioactive material (“NORM™). NORM is found naturally occurring in the earth, and when pipe is removed from
the ground it is not uncommeon for the corroded rust on the pipe to contain very small amounts of NORM. The Company’s former
Oilficld Services business leased a portion of the subject property from Thibodaux. Thibodaux contends that the subject property was
contaminated with NORM generated during the servicing of oilfield equipment by the Company and other tenants, and further alleges
that the Oil Company Defendants (customers of Thibodaux s tenants) and trucking companies (which delivered tubular goods and other
oilficld equipment to the subject property) allowed or caused the uncontrolled dispersal of NORM on Thibodaux’s property.
Thibodaux sccks recovery from the Defendants for clean-up costs, diminution or complete loss of property values, and other damages.
Discovery in the Thibodaux Lawsuit is ongoing, and the Company intends Lo assert a vigorous defense in this litigation. An adverse
Judgment against the Company in the lawsuit could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of
operations and/or cash tlows.

Emvironmental Remediation. The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as amended
("CERCLA™), also known as “Superfund,” and comparable state laws impose liability without regard to fault or the legality of the
original conduct on certain classes of persons who are considered to be responsible for the release of a “hazardous substance™ into
the environment. These persons include the owner or operator of the disposal site or the site where the release occurred, and
companies that disposed or arranged for the disposal of the hazardous substances at the site where the release occurred. Under
CERCLA, such persons may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the hazardous substances that have
been released into the environment, for damages o natural resources, and for the costs of certain health studies, and it is not




uncommon for neighboring tandowners and other third parties to file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly
caused by the release of hazardous substances into the environment. The Company, through acquisitions that it has made, is
identified as onc of many potentially responsible parties (“PRPs™) under CERCLA in four claims relating to the following sites: (i)
the French Limited site northeast of Houston, Texas; (ii) the Sheridan Disposal Services site near Hempstead, Texas: (i1i) the
Combe Fill South Landfill site in Morris County, New Jersey; and (iv) the Malone Service Company (MSC) Supertund sitc in
Texas City. Texas.

Active remediation of the French Limited site was concluded in 1996. 1f the Company is required to contribute to the
costs of additional remediation at that site, it is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company. With regard to the
three remaining Superfund sites, the Company believes it remains responsible for only de minimus levels of wastes contributed to
those sites. and that there are numerous other PRPs identified at each of these sites that contributed significantly larger volumes of
wastes to the sites. The Company expects that its share of any allocated liability for cleanup of the Sheridan Disposal Services site,
and the Combe Fill South Landfill site will not be significant, and based on the Company’s current understanding of the remedial
status of each ol these sites, together with its relative position in comparison to the many other PRPs at those sites, the Company
does not expect its future environmental liability with respect to those sites to have a material adverse cffeet on the Company’s
financial condition, results of operation, and/or cash flows. The Company has been involved in seltlement discussions relating to
the MSC site, and does not expect its liability with respect to this site to have a material adverse cffect on the Company’s linancial
condition.

Tank Faifure Claim. In September 2003, the Company's U.K. subsidiary was served by one of its former customers ina
lawsuit filed in the High Court of Justice, Queen's Bench Division, Salford Court Registry Division in the UK. The customer claims
that above-ground oil storage tanks that it manufactured with colored resin purchased from the Company between 1997 and 2001
have failed or are expected to fail, and that such failure is the result of the unsatisfactory quality and/or unfitness for purpose of the
Company's resin. In pleadings filed with the Court the customer seeks recovery from the Company for the customer's costs incurred in
replacing failed tanks, lost profits, pre-judgment interest, legal expenses, and other unspecified damages. The customer is seeking
recovery for 1.022 failed tanks as of November 30, 2005, and the customer’s forensic accountants contend that the customer’s
replacement costs and other losses incurred to date by the customer relating to the failed tanks (excluding interest and legal expenses)
are approximately $0.8 million. The Company denies that it is liable to the customer, and attributes the alleged defects to tank design
flaws, inconsistent and uncontrolled manufacturing processes and procedures, insufficient recordkeeping, and failure to perform routine
quality control testing, none of which are the responsibility of the Company. Furthermore, the Company’s forensic accountants belicve
that the customer's forensic accountants’ estimate of the customer’s costs associated with failed tanks incurred to date 1s significantly
inflated. Tt is difficult 1o estimate the number of additional tanks manufactured with the resin at issue that might prematurely fail and
for which the customer may seek recovery, based in part on the customer's failure to produce production records and proper evidence of
material traceability. and the wide variation in failure rates by tank model as reported by the customer. The failure patterns (including
the customer’s acknowledgement that certain tank models have extremely high failure rates, while other models manufactured during
the same time frame with the same resin have negligible failure rates) strongly support the Company's opinion that the failures are
attributed to design delects.

In the event that the Company's colored resin is found to have caused or contributed to the failures, the Company shall be
entitled to indemnity for fifty percent (50%) of its damages from the supplier of the base resin used by the Company to manu facture the
colored resin. The Company will also be entitled to partial indemnity from its insurance carriers in the event that it is found to have
any liability in this case. Both of the Company’s insurers have reimbursed a portion of the Company’s defense costs, and additional
defense cost reimbursements are forthcoming, The case has been scheduled for trial commencing in February 2007. The Company
believes that the customer's claims are without merit, and will continue to vigorously defend its position in this case. However, ifan
adverse judgment is obtained against the Company which is ultimately determined not to be covered by insurance it may have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations and/or cash flows.

Orher Legal Proceedings. The Company is also named as a defendant in certain other lawsuits arising in the ordinary

course of business. The outcome of these lawsuits cannot be predicted with certainty, but the Company does not believe they will
have a material adverse cffect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.




PART 11

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Tssuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

The Company’s Common Stock trades on the Nasdag Global Market under the symbol ICOC. There were 409
sharehalders of record of the Company’s Common Stock at November 20, 2006.

The Company has not declared or paid Common Stock dividends during 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. The
Company currently has no plans to declare a Common Stock dividend.

The Company’s former domestic credit facility with Wachovia Bank National Association, which was terminated on
October 27, 2006, restricted the Company’s ability to pay dividends on Common Stock. The Company’s new domestic credit
facility also requires that the Company must not be in default under the facility and must be in compliance with the financial
covenants contained in the credit agreement in order {o pay commeon stock dividends (see Item 7- “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 10 to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements).

The Company is prohibited from paying Commeon Stock dividends until all dividends in arrears are paid to the holders of the
depositary shares representing the Company’s $6.75 Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock (the “Preferred Stock™). Quarterly
dividends (which would have been in an aggregate amount of $544,000 per quarter prior to the reduction in outstanding shares of
the Preferred Stock fotlowing the repurchase of a portion of the Preferred Stock described in the next paragraph and any subsequent
repurchases) have not been paid or declared on the Preferred Stock since January 1, 2003, and dividends in arrears as of September
30, 2006 aggregated $8.2 million. After the Company failed to declare and pay a dividend on the Preferred Stock for six
consecutive quarters through June 30, 2004, the holders of the Preferred Stock elected two additional directors to the Company’s
Board of Directors in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, However, after the conclusion of the 2006 fiscal year, the Company
repurchased a portion of its Preferred Stock as described below, and it is possible that additional repurchases may occur. Any
undeclared or unpaid Preferred Stock dividends on shares of Preferred Stock that remain in arrears will need to be declared and
paid before the Company can pay a dividend on its Common Stock or redeem or repurchase any of its Common Stock. The Board
of Directors must determine that payment of dividends is in the best interests of the Company prior to declaring dividends, and
there can be no assurance that the Board of Directors will declare dividends on the Preferred Stock in the future.

On October 3, 2006, the holders of approximately 80.9% of the voting power of the Preferred Stock proposed and approved
amendments to the Company’s Statement of Designations for its Preferred Stock, which became effective November 13, 2006. The
amendments authorize the Company to repurchase shares of Preferred Stock while dividends on shares of Preferred Stock are in
arrears. The amendments also terminate the right of holders of Preferred Stock to elect up to two directors while dividends payable to
holders of Preferred Stock are in arrears, when there are fewer than 80,000 shares of Preferred Stock outstanding (or 320,000
“Depositary Shares,” each representing 1/4 of a share of Preferred Stock). Through December 11, 2006, the Company repurchased
273,538 shares of Preferred Stock (represented by 1,094,153 Depositary Shares), or 84.8% of the authorized and outstanding Preferred
Stock for $26.00 per Depositary Share for total consideration of $28.4 million. The dividends that were in arrears on these 1,094,153
Depositary Shares were extinguished by the repurchasc. Therefore, dividends in arrears as of December 11, 2006 aggregate only $1.2
million rather than the $8.2 million in arrears as of September 30, 2006. This repurchase also leaves fewer than 80,000 shares of
Preferred Stock (represented by fewer than 320,000 Depositary Shares) outstanding, and thus, terminated the right of the holders of the
Preferred Stock to elect special directors. Except as described in the preceding sentences, the referenced amendments to the Statement
of Designations for the Preferred Stock do not effect the rights of the holders of Preferred Stock and Common Stock. The number of
authorized shares of Preferred Stock and Common Stock are not affected by the foregoing; however, the Company plans to retire the
Preferred Stock that has been repurchased and that may be repurchased in future transactions.




The following table sets forth the high and low trading prices for the Company’s Common Stock as reported on the
Nasdaq Global Market.

Fiscal Year High Low
2006 First Quarter $3.35 £2.11
Second Quarter $5.00 $3.14
Third Quarter $6.18 $4.12
Fourth Quarter $7.37 $398
2005 First Quarter $3.69 $2.60
Second Quarter $3.66 $2.87
Third Quarter $3.36  $1.92
Fourth Quarter $3.80  $2.i8

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected financial data of the Company that has been derived from audited consolidated
financial statements. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto, included elsewhere in this report.

During fiscal 2006, an error was discovered in how the Company’s previously reported earnings per share were calculated.
The Company did not deduct undeclared and unpaid Preferred Stock dividends of $544,000 per quarter and $2,176,000 per year,
beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2003, that accrue o the liquidation preference of the Company’s outstanding Preferred
Stock from net income (loss) in calculating earnings per share. The Company has restated its earnings per share for each of the
years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2005. The restatement does not impact previously reported revenues, cash
flow, net income (loss) or balance sheet components.

Fiscal Years Ended September 30,
2005 2004 2003

2006 (restated) {restated) (restated) 2002
(in thousands, except for share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

REVENMUES cu.vvivieceveiercrie et eeeec s seereeeses et et r e b $324,331 $296,606 £257.525 $206,614 $181,472
Costs of sales and services {exclusive of depreciation shown

separately below) .. 261,228 243,140 209,671 172,692 147,345
Gross profit 1o, 63,103 53,466 47,854 33,922 34,127
Selling, general and administrative expenses ... 34,284 37,001 33,788 34,363 29,824
Depreciation and amortization. ... nineesieesiiecens 7,386 7,772 7,996 9,356 10,240
tmpairment, restructuring and other Costs i 118 488 854 12,814 3,168
Operating income (loss) 21,315 8,205 5,216 (22,611 (9,105}
Interest EXPEnse, NEL....ooviiei e (2,091) (2,836) (2,663) {3,489) (12,831)
Other iNCOME (EXPENSE) . cnvverereir e imse et 75 (149) (35) 493 1,492
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes

and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . 19,259 5,220 2518 (25,607) (20.,444)
Provision (benefit) tOr INCOME AXES 11rovevieereceriienin e 5,836 218 (1,370) (4,752) (4,176)
Income {loss) from continuing operations before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle. ... 13,463 5,002 3,888 (20,855) (16,268)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income

TAXES ©ovveieisseeeserar e samesesaesassansemssee e bsams s an e s she s e et e s an et (1,459) (497} (3,631) (374) 44,214
Income (loss} before cumulative effect of change in

ACCOUNTING PrNCIPIE oo 12,004 4,505 257 (21,229) 27,946
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ........... - - - (28.863) -
et inCOME (LOSS).courvivriirraririrnrir s $12.004 $4,505 $257 8 (50,092) $ 27,946
Preferred dividends declared .........oeovveevvimenciice vl - - - (544) (2,176)
Undeclared and unpaid Preferred Stock dividends, as restated {2,176) (2,176) {2,176) (1.632) -
Net income {loss) applicable to Common Stock, as restated $9.828 $2,329 $(1,9219) S (52,268) S 25,770




Earnings (Loss) Per Share:
Basic
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle, as restated.........
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations.......................
Earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle, as restated.........o.ooooveieeeiieenne
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ...........
Earnings (loss) per common share, as restated.....................

Earnings (Loss) Per Share:

Diluted

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle, as restated ........

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, as restated.....

Earnings (loss) before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, as restated.. oo

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

Earnings (loss) per common share, as restated ..

Weighted average shares outstanding (basic).... e

Weighted average shares outstanding (drluted) as restated

Other Financial Data:

Capital expenditures.... .

Cash provided by (uscd for) opcratmg acuwucs by contmulng
OPEFALIONS ©oviiuiiii ettt e eeas et er e en s eran

Cash used for investing activities by continuing operations ..
Cash provided by (used for) financing activities by continuing
OPEIALONS ..ottt ettt s et s

Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and equIvalENTS...ooveiirieiii e
Working capital...........c..oerriveeivninnienns
Property, plant and equipment. net.........
Total @SSEL5 ..oovcviiveinirs et
Long-term deb1, net of current portion...
Shareholders’ equity ........cocoov i

Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

2005 2004 2003
2006 (restated) (restated) (restated) 2002
(in thousands, except for share data)
5.44 $.11 $.07 $(.93) $(.77)
{.06) (.02) (.14) (.02) 1.84
38 .09 (.08) (.94) 1.07
- - - (1.16) -
$.38 $.09 $.08) $(2.10) $1.07
$.43 .11 $.07 $(.93) $(.77)
(.06) (.02) (14) (.02) 1.84
37 .09 (.08) (.94) 1.07
- - - (1.16) -
$.37 $.09 $(.08) $(2.10) $1.07
25,680,000 25,442,000 25,276,000 24,873,000 24,020,000
26,255,000 25,816,000 25,329,000 24,873,000 24,020,000
Fiscal Years Ended September 30,
2006 2005 2004 2063 2002
(in thousands, except for share data)
$8,080 $5,039 $4,725 $8,925 310,159
13,498 4,849 4,816 (7,170} (8,288)
(8.067) (4,086) (4,275} (8,499) (9,514)
$9,013 $1,473 $(1,442) $(106,124) $(12,100}
$17.427 $3,234 $1,931 $4.114 $129,072
57,501 41,382 34,209 32,725 145,939
50,884 49,274 52,198 34,639 62,607
197,961 164,255 158,470 145,261 304,681
21,559 18,993 19,700 23,378 128,877
$91,717 $77,090 $70,941 $67,329 $111,489

(1) The Company has presented the measurement gross profit that is not calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAP™), but is derived from relevant items in the Company’s GAAP financials. The Company presents this measurement because the
Company uses this measurement as an indicator of the income the Company generates from its revenues. The material limitation of this Non-
GAAP measurement is that it excludes depreciation expense. The Company mitigates this limitation by the provision of the specific detailed
computation of the measure and cnsuring that this Non-GAAP measure is no more prominent in the Company’s filings than GAAP measures

of profitability.
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Fiscal Years Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Net income (loss) 512,004 $4,505 $257 $(50,092) $27,946
Add tof(deduct from) net income (loss):

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - - - 28,863 -
(Income) loss from discontinued operations 1,459 497 3,631 374 (44.214)
Provision {(benefit) for income taxes 5.836 218 (1,370) (4,752) (4,176)
Other (income} expense (75) 149 35 (493) (1,492)
Interest expense, net 2,091 2,836 2,663 3,480 12,831
Impairment, restructuring and other costs 118 488 854 12,814 3,168
Depreciation and amortization 7,386 7,772 7,996 9,356 10,240
Selling, general and administrative expenses 34,284 37,001 33,788 34,363 29,824
Gross profil $63,103 $53,466 $47 854 $33,922 $34,127

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Introduction

The Company’s revenues are primarily derived from (1) product sales and (2) toll services in the polymers processing
industry. Product sales entail the Company purchasing resin (primarily polyethylene) and other raw materials which are further
processed within the Company’s operating facilities. The further processing of the material may involve size reduction services
and/or compounding services. Compounding services involve melt blending various resins and additives to produce a
homogeneous material. Compounding services include the manufacture and sale of concentrates. Concentrates are polymers loaded
with high levels of chemical and organic additives that are melt blended into base resins to give plastic films and other finished
products desired physical properties. Afler processing, the Company sells the finished products to customers. Toll services
involve both size reduction and compounding services whereby these services are performed on customer owned material.

The Company’s management structure and reportable segments are organized into five business segments defined as 1CO

Polymers North America, ICO Brazil, Bayshore Industrial, ICO Europe and 1CO Courtenay - Australasia. This organization is
consistent with the way information is reviewed and decisions are made by executive management.
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ICO Polymers North America, ICO Brazil, ICO Europe and ICO Courtenay - Australasia primarily produce competitively
priced polymer powders for the rotational molding industry as well as other specialty markets for powdered polymers, including
masterbatch and concentrate producers, users of polymer-based metal coatings, and non-woven textile markets, Masterbatches are
concentrates that incorporate all additives a customer needs into a single package for a particular product manufacturing process, as
opposed to requiring numcrous packages. Additionally, these segments provide specialty size reduction services on a tolling basis.
“Tolling™ refers to processing customer owned material for a service fee. The Bayshore Industrial segment designs and produces
proprietary concentrates, masterbatches and specialty compounds, primarily for the plastic film industry, in North America and in
selected export markets. The Company’s 1CO Europe segment includes operations in France, Holland, Italy and the U.K. The
Company’s 1CO Courtenay - Australasia segment includes operations in Australia, Malaysia and New Zealand.

Cost of sales and services is primarily comprised of purchased raw materials (resins and various additives), compensation
and benefits to non-administrative employees, electricity, repair and maintenance, occupancy costs and supplies. Selling, general
and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation and related benefits paid to the sales and marketing, executive
management, information technology, accounting, legal, human resources and other administrative employees of the Company,
other sales and marketing expenses, communications costs, systems costs, insurance costs, consulting costs and legal and
professional accounting fees.

Demand for the Company’s products and services tend to be driven by overall economic factors and, particularly,
consumer spending. The trend of applicable resin prices also impacts customer demand. As resin prices are falling, customers tend
to reduce their inventories and, therefore, reduce their need for the Company’s products and services as customers choose 1o
purchase resin upon demand rather than building large levels of inventory. Conversely, as resin prices are rising, customers often
increase their inventories and accelerate their purchases of products and services from the Company to help control their raw
material costs. Additionally, demand for the Company’s products and services tends to be seasonal, with customer demand
historically being weakest during the Company’s first fiscal quarter due to the holiday season and also due to property taxes levied
in the U.S. on customers’ inventories on January |. The Company’s fourth fiscal quarter also tends to be softer compared to the
Company’s second and third fiscal quarters, in terms of customer demand, due to vacation periods in the Company’s European
markets. However, demand during the Company’s fourth fiscal quarter of 2006 and 2005 was the strongest demand of all quarters
within fiscal years 2006 and 2005 in part due to rising resin prices.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The consolidated financial statements are impacted by the accounting policies used and the estimates and assumptions made
by management during their preparation. Management believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant
Judgments and estimates used in the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, if any, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The more significant areas requiring use of estimates relate to employee benefit
liabilitics, valuation allowances for deferred tax assets, workers compensation, inventory reserves, allowance for doubtful accounts
related to accounts receivable and commitments and contingencies.

Estimates surrounding employee benefit liabilities are related to the Company maintaining a partially self-insured medical
plan in the United States (with stop loss insurance coverage limiting the Company’'s expense to $0.1 million per covered person per
year). Estimates are required in evaluating the Company’s medical expense incurred, but not paid due to the timing difference
between when an employee receives medical care and the time the claim is processed and paid by the Company (typically a two to
three month timing difference). The valuation of deferred tax assets is based upon estimates of future pretax income in determining
the ability to realize the deferred tax assets in each taxing jurisdiction. Estimates for workers” compensation liabilities are due to
the Company being partially self-insured in the United States (with the exception of fiscal year 2004) with stop loss insurance
coverage limiting the Company’s expense to $0.2 million per claim in fiscal year 2006, a decrease from $0.3 million in fiscal year
2005. Estimates are made for ultimate costs associated with open workers’ compensation claims as well as for claims not yet
reported. Inventory reserves are estimated based upon the Company’s review of its inventory. This review requires the Company
to estimate the fair market value of certain inventory that has become old or obsolete. Determining the amount of the allowance for
doubtful accounts involves estimating the collectibility of customer accounts receivable balances. Estimates surrounding
commitments and contingencies are related primarily to litigation claims for which the Company evaluates the circumstances
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surrounding the claims to determine how much expense, if any, the Company should record. Actual results could differ from the
estimates discussed above. Management believes that its estimates are reasconable.

Revenue and Related Cost Recognition - The Company’s accounting policy regarding revenue recognition is to recognize
revenue when all of the following criteria are met:

*  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists: The Company has received an order from a customer.

= Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered: For product sales, revenue recognition occurs when title
and risk of ownership have passed to the customer. For service revenue, revenue recognition occurs upon the
completion of service.

= Seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable: Sales prices are agreed with the customer before delivery has
occurred or the services have been rendered.

= Collectibility is reasonably assured: The Company has a customer credit policy to ensure collectibility is
reasonably assured.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment - Property, plantand equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever an
event or change in circumstances indicates the carrying amount of an asset or group of assets may not be recoverable. The
impairment review includes comparison of undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or group of assets
with the associated assets’ carrying value. If the carrying value of the asset or group of assets exceeds the expected future cash
flows (undiscounted and without interest charges), an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset exceeds its fair value.

Goodwill - The Company tests annually for impairment (and in interim periods if certain events occur indicating that the
carrying value of goodwill and/or indefinite-lived intangible assets may be impaired) using the discounted cash flow method in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”” The Company’s goodwill is recorded in
Bayshore Industrial, Inc. and 1CO Courtenay-Australasia. The Company completed its annual impairment testing and did not have
impairment losses of goodwill in fiscal years 2006, 2005 or 2004,

Stock Options - Effective October 1, 2005, SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, became effective for the Company.
This standard requires, among other things, a Company to expense share-based payment transactions using the grant-date fair value
based method. The Company prospectively adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 on October 1, 2002,
thus the revised standard does not have a material impact on the Company’s financial staternents. Qutstanding awards under the
Company’s plans vest over periods ranging from immediate vesting to four years. The Company expenses the fair value of stock
option grants that vest over a vesting period over the applicable vesting period.

Income Taxes - The provision for income taxes includes federal, state, and foreign income taxes currently payable and
deferred based on currently enacted tax laws. Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax consequences of differences between

the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Company reduces deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance
when, based on its estimates, it is more likely than not that a portion of those assets will not be realized in a future period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following are considered by management as key measures of liquidity applicable to the Company:

2006 2005
Cash and cash equivalents $17.4 million $ 3.2 million
Working capital $57.5 million $41.4 million

Cash and cash equivalents increased $14.2 million and working capital increased $16.1 million during fiscal year 2006 due to
the factors described below.
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Cash Flows
Fiscal Year
2006 2005 2004
(Doflars in Thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities by continuing

operations 513,498 $4,849 34,816

Net cash used for investing activities (8,067 {4,086) (4,275)

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities 9,013 1,473 (1,442)

Net cash used for operating activities by discontinued

operations (353 (822) (1,431

Effect of exchange rate changes 102 (I111) 149
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $14,193 $1,303 $(2,183)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities by continuing operations during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 improved
$8.6 million compared to the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. Most of the $8.6 million increase was due to an improvement in
income from continuing operations of $8.5 million, offset partially by changes in certain working capital accounts. An increase in
accounts payable and income tax payable were sources of cash during the year. The increase in accounts payable was due to higher
purchasing levels to support higher sales levels in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. The increase in income taxes payable was
due to not being required to make U.S. estimated tax deposits during fiscal year 2006 as a result of the minimal U.S. taxable income in
fiscal year 2005. The Company will make its required fiscal year 2006 U.S. tax payment of approximately $3.4 million during the first
quarter of fiscal year 2007, These sources of cash were offset by the use of cash in accounts receivable and inventory. The increase in
accounts receivable was primarily due to an increase in revenues of $16.0 million in the three months ended September 30, 2006
compared to the three months ended September 30, 2005, The increase in inventory was due to higher average raw material prices.

For the years ended Septermber 30, 2005 and 2004, cash provided by operating activities by continuing operations was $4.8
million. Cash used for accounts receivable decreased to $4.0 million from cash used of $9.5 million in the prior year due to a larger
increase in accounts receivable in the prior year due to the growth in revenues in fiscal year 2004. Cash used for inventory decreased
to $2.6 million from cash used of $7.1 million in the prior year due to a targer increase in inventory in the prior year due to the growth
in sales volumes in fiscal year 2004. Cash used relating to a decline in accounts payable was $0.5 million during fiscal year 2005,
compared to cash generated of $8.5 million in the prior year, due to the timing of inventory purchases within the Company’s 1CO
Europe business segment.

Cash used for discontinued operations during fiscal year 2006 declined from $0.8 million to $0.4 million due primarily to
lower legal expenses related to discontinued operations.

Cash used for discontinued operations for the year ended September 30, 2005 improved to cash used of $0.8 million compared
to cash used of $1.4 million for the year ended September 30, 2004. This improvement was due to higher payments in the previous
year related to Qilfield Services business labilities retained. The cash used of $0.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2005 was
primarily related to legal expenses and payments for Oilfield Services business liabilities retained,

The Company expects that its working capital, over time, will continue to grow due to an increase in sales revenues which
requires the Company to purchase raw materials and maintain inventory, and therefore increases the Company’s accounts receivables
and inventory. In addition, rising resin prices would also have the effect of increasing working capital.

Cash Flows Used for Investing Activities

Capital expenditures totaled $8.1 million during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 and were related primarily to
expanding the Company’s production capacity. Approximately 45% of the $8.1 million of capital expenditures was spent at the
Company’s Bayshore subsidiary to add a production line that increased the facility’s capacity by approximately 10%. The Company
spent approximately $1.3 million to upgrade existing equipment and to maintain existing production capacity.

Capital expenditures totaled $5.0 million during the year ended September 30, 2005 and were related primarily to upgrading
the Company’s production facilities. Approximately 67% of the $5.0 million of capital expenditures was spent in the Company’s 1CO
Polymers North America and ICO Europe business segments. The Company spent approximately $2.3 million to upgrade existing
equipment and to maintain existing production capacity.
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During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company completed the sale of vacant land for net proceeds of $0.9 miliion and
recorded a pre-tax gain of $65,000.

Cash Flows Provided (Used For) Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities increased during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 t0 $9.0 million compared to
$1.5 million during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005. The change was primarily the result of completing several financing
arrangements within the Company’s U.S. and European subsidiaries.

Cash provided by (used for) financing activities during the year ended September 30, 2005 was cash provided of $1.5 million
compared to cash used of $(1.4) million during the year ended September 30, 2004. The change was primarily the result of completing
several financing arrangements within the Company’s U.S. and European subsidiaries which totaled approximately $12.0 million
during fiscal 2005. Term debt repayments increased $6.8 million compared 1o the prior year primarily due to the early retirement of
$7.1 million of the Company’s 10 3/8% Series B Senior Notes during fiscal 2005, at par value.

Fincncing Arrangements

The Company maintains several lines of credit. Total credit availability net of outstanding borrowings, letters of credit
and applicable loreign currency contracts increased $6.6 million to $41.1 million at September 30, 2006 from $34.5 million at
September 30, 2005, The facilities are collateralized by certain assets of the Company. Borrowings under these agreements totaled
$18.0 miltion and $10.0 million at September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005, respectively.

During fiscal year 2006, the Company closed on numerous refinancings in order to increase the Company’s liquidity and
lower the Company’s cost of debt. In total, the Company obtained new term loans of $11.9 million, within the Company’s U.S.
and European subsidiaries and expanded certain credit facilities. The Company repaid 311.0 million of leng-term debt, including
the redemption of the remaining $3.0 milhion 10 3/8% Series B Senior Notes at par value,

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006, the Company repatriated foreign earnings in the amount of $6.4 million from
two of the Company’s European subsidiaries to take advantage of the special one-time tax rate of 5.25% as provided for under the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 in part by mcurring additional indebtedness in two of the Company’s European subsidiaries.

There were $0.8 million and $1.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Company’s domestic credit facility with
Wachovia Bank as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005, respectively. The amount of available borrowings under the
Company’s domestic credit facility with Wachovia Bank was $20.8 million and $19.7 million based on the credit facility limits, current
levels of accounts receivables, inventory, outstanding letters of credit and borrowings as of September 30, 2006 and September 30,
2005, respectively.

On October 27, 2006, the Company entered into a five-year Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with KeyBank
National Association and Wells Fargo Bank National Association (collectively referred to herein as “KeyBank™), establishing a $45.0
million domestic credit facility (the “Credit Facility™) and terminated its existing $25.0 million senior credit facility with Wachovia
Bank, National Association (“Wachovia Bank™). The borrowing capacity available to the Company under the KeyBank Credit Facility
consists of a five-year $15.0 million term loan and a five-year $30.0 million revolving credit facility. The KeyBank Credit Facility was
utilized to reptace commitments and outstanding borrowings under the Company’s $25.0 million credit facility with Wachovia Bank.
Proceeds of the KeyBank Credit Facility are being or may be used for working capital and for general corporate purposes, and have
been used to fund repurchases of the Company’s Preferred Stock. The $45.0 million KeyBank Credit Facility contains a variable
interest ratc cqual to either (at the Company’s option depending on borrowing levels) zero percent (0%) or one quarter percent {%%)
per annum in excess of the prime rate or one and one quarter percent (1'%%), one and one half percent ( 1 ¥2%) or two percent (2%) per
annum in excess of the adjusted Eurodollar rate, and is based upon the Company’s leverage ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement.
The borrowing capacity varies based upon the levels of domestic cash, receivables and inventory. Under the new Credit Facility from
KeyBank, the amount of available borrowings based on the credit facility limits, outstanding letters of credit and borrowings as of
November 30. 2006 was approximately $25.6 million, including the $15.0 million term loan the Company has not drawn down as of
November 30, 2006.

The KeyBank Credit Agreement establishing the new Credit Facility contains financial covenants including minimum tangible
net worth, leverage ratio, fixed charge coverage ratio, and a required level of profitability. In addition, the Credit Agreement contains a
number of limitations on the ability of the Company and its restricted U.S. subsidiaries to (1) incur additional indebtedness, (ii) pay
dividends or redeem any Common Stock, (iii) incur liens or other encumbrances on their assets, (iv) enter into transactions with
affiliates, (v) merge with or into any other entity or (vi) sell any of their assets.
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In addition, any “change of control” of the Company or its restricted U.S. subsidiaries will constitute a default under the
Credit Agreement. “Change of Control,” as defined in the Credit Agreement, is summarized as follows: (i) the acquisition of; or, if
earlier, the sharehelder or director approval of the acquisition of, ownership or voting control, directly or indirectly, beneficially or of
record, by any person, entity, or group (within the meaning of Rule [3d-3 ofthe SEC under the 1934 Act, as then in effect), of shares
representing more than 50% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by the issued and outstanding Common Stock of the
Company; (i} the occupation of a majority of the seats (other than vacant seats) on the board of directors of the Company by
individuals who were neither (A} nominated by the Company’s board of directors nor {B) appointed by directors so nominated; (iii) the
occurrence of a change in control, or other similar provision, under or with respect to any “Material Indebtedness Agreement” (as
defined in the Credit Agreement); or (iv) the failure of the Company to own directly or indirectly, all of the outstanding equity interests
of the Company’s Bayshore Industrial L.P. and 1CO Polymers North America, Inc. subsidiaries.

The Company has various foreign credit facilities in eight foreign countries. The avatilable credit under these facilities varies
based on the levels of accounts receivable within the foreign subsidiary, or is a fixed amount. The foreign credit facilities are
collateralized by assets owned by the foreign subsidiaries and also carry various financial covenants. There were $17.2 million and
$9.0 million of outstanding borrowings under these foreign credit facilities as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005,
respectively. The aggregate amount of available borrowings under the foreign credit facilities was $20.3 million (of which $1.0 million
relates to the Company’s Australian subsidiary, which obtained a waiver from National Australia Bank Limited regarding a violation of
a financial covenant contained in the governing loan agreement) and $14.8 million based on the credit facility Jimits, current levels of
accounts receivables, outstanding letters of credit and borrowings as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2003, respectively.

The weighted average interest rate charged on borrowings under the Company’s various credit facilities at September 30, 2006
and 2005 was 6.0% and 6.7%, respectively.

Future Cash Requirements

On October 10, 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up o 1,160,000 out of 1,290,000
outstanding Depositary Shares each representing 1/4 share of the Company’s $6.75 Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock.
Through December 11, 2006, the Company repurchased 1,094,153 Depositary Shares {representing 273,538 shares of Preferred Stock)
for total consideration of $28.4 million. The repurchase was funded using cash on hand plus borrowings under the Company’s
domestic Credit Agreement.

Capital expenditures for fiscal year 2007 are currenily estimated to be approximately $12.0 million.

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of September 30, 2006. The long-
term debt and capital leases listed below includes both the scheduled principal repayments and interest that will accrue on the
outstanding principal balance. Interest on variable rate indebtedness was computed using the interest rate in effect for each loan at
September 30, 2006.

Fiscal Year
Contractual Obligations: Total 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter
(Dollars in Thousands)

Long-term debt $33,103 $5,714 $4.050 54,330 $3,131 52,117 513,761

Capital leascs 657 246 254 144 13 - -

Operating leases 4314 1.708 1,15 694 522 267 8
Total contractual obligations 38,074 7.668 5419 5,168 3,666 2,384 13,769
Commercial Commitments:

Short-term borrowings under

credit facilitics 17.214 17,214 - - - - -

Total contractual obligations and

commercial commitments $55,288 $24.882 $5,419 $5,168 $3,666 $2.384 $13,769

The Company anticipates that the existing cash balance as of September 30, 2006 of $17.4 million, additional borrowing
capacity of approximately $41.1 million under various foreign and domestic credit arrangements, new borrowings under new credit
facilities and cash flow from operations will provide adequate liquidity for fiscal year 2007 to pay for all current obligations,
including capital expenditures, debt service, lease obligations, repurchases of Preferred Stock and working capital requirements.
There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will be successful in obtaining sources of capital that will be sufficient to
support the Company’s requirements in the long-term.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements. The Company does not have any financial instruments ¢lassified as off-balance sheet (other
than operating leases) as of Scptember 30. 2006 and September 30, 2003,

Results of Operations

The following discussion regarding the Company’s financial performance during the past three fiscal years should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated {inancial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Executive Summary

Fiscal vear 2006 revenues, operating income and volumes grew substantially compared to the prior year. Customer
demand for new and existing products and services increased, primarily in the Company’s U.S. business segments. (Gross margins
(calculated as the difference between revenues and cost of sales and services excluding depreciation, divided by revenues) and
gross profit (defined as total revenues minus cost of sales and services excluding depreciation — see “‘Item 6. Selected Financial
Data™ for a discussion of gross profit) improved due in large part to the benefits of operating leverage (i.e., due to the fixed nature
of many of the Company’s expenses, revenues grew at a higher rate than expenses, yielding higher profitability) on the increased

volume. Selling, general and administrative expenses declined 7% during fiscal 2006 which also contnibuted to the improved
operating income.

The Company’s U.S. segments (Bayshore [ndustrial and 1CO Polymers North America) performed very well during fiscal
year 2006 with a combined operating income increase of $10.2 million, or just over 100%. The Company plans to continue to
expand capacity in its U.S. facilities at a measured pace. During September 2006, the expansion at Bayshore Industrial was
completed, which increased capacity at Bayshore by approximately 10%. During fiscal year 2007, the Company plans to open an
operating facility in Dubai, UAE that will provide size reduction and compounding services primarily to the rotational molding
industry, Also during fiscal year 2007, the Company will expand its operations in Malaysia to introduce new product lines.

Year Ended September 30, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended September 30, 2005

Summary Financial Information
Fiscal Year Ended

September 30,
%
2006 2008 Change Change
(Dollars in Thousands)
Total revenues $324,331 $296,606 $27.725 9%
SG&a 34,284 37,001 (2,717 (M%
Operating income 21315 8,205 13,110 160%
Income {rom continuing operations 13,463 5,002 8,461 169%
Net income $12.,004 $4,505 $7,499 166%
Volumes @ 321.000 294,000 27,000 9%
Gross margin & 19.5% 18.0% 1.5%
SG&A as a percentage of revenue 10.6% 12.5% (1.9)%
Operating income as a percentage of revenue 6.6% 2.8% 3.8%

HregGR& A" is defined as selling, general and administrative expense (including stock option compensation expense).

2 4 il . . . . .

& volumes™ refers to total metric tons sold cither by selling proprietary products or toll processing services.

% Gross maryin is calculated as the difference between revenues and cost of sales and services excluding depreciation,
divided by revenues,

Revenues. Total revenues increased $27.7 million or 9% to $324.3 million during fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal year
2005. The increase in revenues is a result of the changes in volumes sold by the Company (“volume™), changes in selling prices and
mix of finished products sold or services performed (“price/product mix™) and, finally, the impact from changes in foreign currencies
relative to the U.S. Dollar (“translation effect™).
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The componenis of the $27.7 million and 9% increase in revenues are:

Increase/(Decrease) on Revenues

% $
(Pollars in Thousands)
Volume 5% $17,183
Price/product mix 5% 14,344
Translation effect (1% (3,802)
Total change in revenue 9% $27,725

The Company’s revenues are impacted by product sales mix as well as the change in the Company’s raw material prices
(“resin prices™). As the price of resin increases or decreases, market prices for the Company’s products will generally also increase or
decrease. Typically. this will lead to higher or lower average selling prices. During fiscal year 2006, resin prices were 15% - 22%
higher (depending upon the region and type of raw material) than fiscal 2005. A change in the Company’s overall product mix caused
by the increase in sales at Bayshore industrial offset a portion of the impact on revenue from higher average prices. These two factors
combined led to a net increase of $14.3 milfion on revenues as a result of changes in price/product mix for fiscal 2006. Although the
Company participates in numerous markets and purchases numerous grades of resin, the graph below illustrates the trend in resin prices
typically purchased by the Company.

Resin Price Graph i
Source: Chemical Market Associates, Inc,
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Total volumes sold increased 27,000 metric tons, or 9%, during fiscal year 2006 to 321,000 metric tons. This increase in
volumes sold led to an increase in revenues of $17.2 million. The volume increase was most notable at the Company’s Bayshore
Industrial location due to an increase in customer demand from existing customers plus the addition of new customers during the year
as a result of a more specialized product mix. The translation effect of changes in foreign currencies relative to the U.S. Dollar caused
areduction in revenues of $3.8 million for fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005. This revenue change was primarily duetoa
stronger U.S. Dollar compared 1o the Euro.
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Revenues by segment for the vear ended September 30, 2006 compared 10 the vear ended September 30, 2005

Fiscal Year Ended

September 30,
% of % of
2006 Total 2005 Total Change Yo
(Dollars in Thousands)
1CO Europe $129.372 40% $126,986 43% $2.386 2%,
Bayshore Industrial 93.005 28% 73,078 24% 19.927 2704
1CO Courtenay - Australasia 47.819 15% 47,670 16% 149 -
[CO Polymers North America 44,834 14% 40,589 14% 4.245 10%
ICO Brazil 9,301 3% 8.283 3% 1.018 129
Total $324.331 100% $296.606  100% $27.725 9%
2006 Revenues by Segment 2005 Revenues by Segment
K50 Brazil ICO Brazil
ICO Folymers 3% ICO Polyrrers 3%
North America North America
14% ma:[g:;ope 14% mgifpe
100 Courtenay ICO Courtenay
- Australasia - Australasia
159, 16%
Bayshore
Bayshore Industrial
Industrial 24%,
28%

ICO Europe’s revenues increased $2.4 million or 2% primarily due 1o higher average selling prices, compared to average
selling prices of the prior year prompted by higher resin costs, which caused a revenue increase of $11.4 million. Lower volumes sold
of 7% as a result of lower customer demand (primarily lower tolling volumes) reduced revenues by $5.1 million. The translation effect
of a stronger U.S. Dollar compared to the relevant European currencies caused a revenue decline of $3.9 million.

Bayshore Industrial’s revenues increased $19.9 million or 27% primarily caused by an increase in volumes sold of 32% due to
an increase in customer demand from existing customers plus the addition of new customers during the year as a result of a more

specialized product mix.

ICO Courtenay-Australasia’s revenues increased $0.1 million as a result of higher average selling prices ($ 1.3 million impact
1o revenues) partially offset by the translation effect of a stronger U.S. Dollar compared to the relevant Australasian currencies of $1.2
million.

[CO Polymers North America revenues increased $4.2 million or 10% as a result of higher wolling revenues of $3.4 million due
in part to an increase in specialty grinding. As a result of higher average selling prices, partially offset by lower volumes, product sales
revenues increased $0.8 million.

1CO Brazil’s revenues increased $1.0 million or 12%, primarily due to the translation effect of a stronger Brazil Real compared
to the U.S. Dollar, which increased Brazil’s revenues by $1.3 million.

Gross Margins. Consolidated gross margins (calculated as the difference between revenues and cost of sales and services,
excluding depreciation, divided by revenues) improved to 19.5% for fiscal year 2006 compared to 18.0% for fiscal year 2005, This
improvement was primarily due to the benefits of operating leverage driven by the growth in 1otal volumes sold. The Company takes
advantage of operating leverage when volumes increase because cost of goods sold expenses such as labor and other plant expenses
increase (or decrease) in a lower proportion relative to the increase in volumes. Additionally, despite higher raw material prices, the
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Company improved its feedstock margins (the difference between product sales revenues and related cost of raw materials sold) as a
result of the ability to pass along the higher raw material prices in the form of higher selling prices.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses (including stock option compensation
expense) (“SG&A™) declined $2.7 million or 7% during fiscal year 2006 compared to fiscal year 2005.

The decline in SG&A was duc to lower legal fees of $0.9 million, lower third party Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs of
$0.9 million, lower severance expenses of $0.6 million, and lower employee medical claims cxpense of $0.4 million. Additionally, a
stronger U.S. Dollar compared to relevant foreign currencies reduced SG&A by 30.3 million. As a percentage of revenues, SG&A
declined to 10.6% as a result of the growth in revenues and the reduction in SG&A.

Impairment, restructuring and other costs. Impairment, restructuring and other costs decreased $0.4 million or 76% in fiscal
2006. This decline was a result of lower expenses as compared to fiscal 2005 from damage caused by Hurricane Rita of $55,000,
lower European technical center relocation costs of $0.2 million and costs recognized in fiscal year 2005 of $0.1 million related to the
closure of the Company’s Swedish plant in fiscal year 2004,

Operating income. Consolidated operating income was $21.3 million for fiscal year 2006, an increase of $13.1 million or
160% from fiscal year 2005. This increase was caused primarily by the increase in gross profit (caused primarily by the volume
increase) and a reduction in SG&A.

Operating income (loss) by segment and discussion of significant segment changes follows.

Operating income (loss) by segment for the year ended September 30, 2006 compared to the year ended September 30, 2005

Operating income (loss) Fiscal Year Ended
September 30,
2006 2005 Change
(Dollars in Thousands)

ICO Europe $6,021 $4,201 $1,820

Bayshore Industrial 14,843 8,881 5,962

HCO Courtenay - Australasia 2412 2910 (498)

ICO Polymers North America 3,037 771 4,266

LCO Brazil (459) (951) 492

Total reportable segments 27.854 15,812 12,042

General Corporate expense {5.682) (6,934) 1,252

Stock option expenses and other (857) (673) {184

Consolidated $21,315 $8,205 $13,110
Operating income (loss) as a percentage of revenues Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

Increase
2006 2005 {Decrease)

1CO Europe 5% 3% 2%
Bayshore Industrial 16% 12%, 4%
ICO Courtenay - Australasia 5% 6% (1%)
[CO Polymers North America 11% 2% 9%
ICO Brazil (5%) (11%) 6%
Consolidated 7% 3% 4%

1CO Europe’s operating income increased $1.8 million or 43% primarity due to improved feedstock margins and lower
operating costs. These benefits were partially offset by the reduction in volumes sold. The improved feedstock margins were a result
of improved management of product selling prices and resin procurement. Lower depreciation expense of $0.5 million due to low
levels of capital expenditures in recent years also contributed to the operating income improvement

Bayshore Industrial’s operating income improved $6.0 million or 67% due to a 32% growth in total sales volumes. Although

operating costs such as electricity and payroll increased due to the volume increase, this operation benefited from operating leverage of
the business.
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[CO Courtenay-Australasia’s operating income decreased $0.5 million or 7% due to a reduction in gross margin caused by
pricing pressures in New Zealand and Australia resulting from a challenging market environment which had the effect of reducing
feedstock margins. The Australian market environment began 10 improve in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006.

ICO Polymers North America’s operating income improved $4.3 million to $5.0 million caused by an increase in tolling
revenues of $3.4 million or 15%. A reduction in medical claims expensc of $1.7 million also contributed to the improved operating
income.

1CO Brazil’s operating loss decreased $0.5 million to a loss of $0.5 million. This improvement was a result of improved
margins on product sales due to improved management of product selling prices and raw material procurement,

General corporate expenses declined $1.3 million or 18% due primarily to lower severance costs of $0.5 million, lower third
party Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs of $0.4 mithon (83%) and lower third-party professional accounting and legal expenscs of
£0.2 mitlion (24%).

Intevest expense, net. Interest expense, net of interest income, declined $0.7 million in fiscal year 2006 compared to the prior
year. This decline was primarily caused by lower overall average net borrowings and the refinancings that occurred during fiscal years
2006 and 2005 which had the effect of lowering borrowing rates, including the repayment of the Company’s 10 3/8% Senior Notes.

Income Taxes. The Company’s effective income tax rate for continuing operations was an expense of 30% during fiscal 2006,
compared to an expense of 4% during fiscal 2005. The change was primarily due to the increase in pretax income from domestic
operations. In addition, in tiscal year 2005 the Company utilized previously reserved net operating losses in its ltalian and Swedish
subsidiaries which reduced the fiscal 2005 tax rate.

Income from continuing operations. Income from continuing operations improved from $5.0 million in fiscal 2005 to $13.5
millton in fiscal 2006 due o the factors discussed above.

Loss From Discontinned Operations. On November 21, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement settling all of the
pending indemnity claims asserted by National Oilwell Varco, Inc., formerly Varco International, Inc. (“"NOV”) relating 1o NOV’s
purchase of substantially all of the Company’s Qilfield Services business on September 6, 2002, In exchange for a complete relcasc of
claims and indemnity agreement, the Company agreed to a $7.5 million payment consisting of: a cash payment of $1.1 million; release
to NOV of the $5.4 million held in escrow; and a $1.0 million note payable in one year. The funds in escrow were sct aside on
September §, 2002, and consisted of $5.0 milhion of the sale proceeds plus interest. The escrowed funds were deemed to be a doubtful
collection and a reserve recorded against the $5.0 million during fiscal year 2004 through discontinued operations. As a result of the
settlement, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge through discontinued operations of $2.1 million ($1.4 million after taxes) during its
fiscal fourth quarter ended September 30, 2006. The loss from discontinued operations during fiscal year 2003 related to legal fees and
other expenses incurred by the Company associated with discontinued operations.

Net Income. Net Income improved from $4.5 million in fiscal 2005 to §12.0 million in fiscal 2006 due to the factors discussed
above.

Foreign Currency Transiation. The fluctuations of the U.S Dollar against the Euro, British Pound, New Zealand Dollar,
Brazilian Real, Malaysian Ringgit and the Australian Dollar have impacted the translation of revenues and expenses of the
Company’s international operations. The table below summarizes the impact of changing exchange rates for the above currencies
between fiscal 2006 and 2005.

Revenues $(3.8) mitlion
Operating income {0.3) million
Income from continuing operations before income taxes (0.2) million
Net income {0.2) million
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Year Ended September 30, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended September 30, 2004

Summary Financial Information
Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2005 2004 Change % Change
(Dollars in thousands)

Total revenues $296,606 $257,525 $39,081 15%
SG&A ™M 37,001 33,788 3.213 10%
Operating income 8,205 5,216 2,989 57%
Income from continuing operations 5.002 3,888 1,114 29%
Net income $4,505 $257 $4.248 >100%
Volumes @ 294,000 306,000 (12.000) (4%)
Gross margin ' 18.0% 18.6% (.6%)
SG&A as a percentage of revenue 12.5% 13.1% (.6%)
Operaling income as a percentage of revenue 2.8% 2.0% 8%

M “gG&A™ is defined as selling. general and administrative expense (including stock option compensation expense).
2 volumes™ refers to total metric tons sold either by selling proprietary products or toll processing services.
* Gross margin is calculated as the difference between revenues and cost of sales and services excluding depreciation,

divided by revenues,

Revenues. Total revenues increased $39.1 million or 15% to $296.6 million during fiscal year 2005,

The components of the $39.1 million and 15% increase in revenues are:

Increase/(Decrease)
Yo $
(Dollars in Thousands)
Volume (3%) $(7,600)
Price/product mix ! 15% 38,281
Translation effect ¥ 3% 8,400
Total change in revenue 15% £39.081

2 price/product mix refers to the impact on revenues due to changes in selling prices and the impact on revenues due ic a

change in the mix of finished products sold or services performed.

2 Translation effect refers to the impact on revenues from the changes in forcign currencics relative to the U.S. Dollar,

The Company’s revenues are impacted by the change in the Company's raw material prices (“resin” prices). Asthe pricc of
resin increases, market prices for the Company’s products will generally also increase. This will typically lead to higher average selling
prices. During fiscal year 2005, resin prices rose dramatically and increased the Company’s revenues by approximately $38.3 million.

Lower volumes sold of 12,000 metric tons, or 4%, resulted in lower revenues of $7.6 million during fiscal year 2005. Lower
volumes were primarily due to a decline in customer demand. The translation effect of stronger foreign currencies relative to the U.S.
Dollar increased revenues by $8.4 million during fiscal ycar 2005.
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Revemues by segment for the year ended September 30, 2005 compared to the vear ended September 30, 2004

Fiscal Year Ended

September 30,
% of % of
2005 Total 2004 Total Change Yo
(Dollars in Thousands)
1CO Eurcpe $126,986 43%  $112,554 44%,  $14.432 13%
Bayshore Industrial 73,078 24% 60,285 23, 12,793 21%
[CO Courtenay - Australasia 47,670 6% 44,640 6% 7,036 17%
ICO Polymers North America 40,589 14% 36,773 14%, 1.816 10%
1CO Brazil 8,283 3% 7,273 394 1,010 14%,
Total $296,606 100%  $257.,525 100%  $39,081 15%
2005 Revenues by Segment 2004 Revenues by Segment
ICO Brazl )
Li%g:ﬂ”::; 3% (CO Polymers icogizﬂl
North America

ICO Europe
43%

14% ICO Europe

44%

14%

ICO ICO
Courtenay - Courtenay - J
Austialasia Australasia BN

16% N

16%

Bayshore

Industrial Industrial
24% 23%

Bayshart

1CO Europe’s revenues increased $14.4 million or 13% caused by the translation effect of stronger European currencies
compared to the U.S. Dollar of $4.9 million and an increase of $17.2 million due to an increase in average selling prices prompted by
higher resin prices. A decline in volumes sold of 9% caused by a reduction in customer demand resulted in a decrease in revenues of
$7.7 mitlion.

Bayshore Industrial’s revenues increased $12.8 million or 21% as a result of higher average selling prices due to higher raw
material prices ($8.7 million impact) as well as an increase in volumes sold of 7% ($4. t million impact). The volume increase was due
Lo gaining new customers and an increase in customer demand.

ICO Courtenay - Australasia’s revenues increased $7.0 million or 17% primarily as a result of higher average selling prices
prompted by higher resin costs ($6.4 million impact) as well as the translation effect of stronger Australian and New Zealand dollar
currencies compared to the U.S. Dollar of $2.4 million, offset by reduced volumes sold of 4% ($1.7 million impact) due to lower
customer demand in New Zealand.

[CO Polymers North America revenues increased $3.8 million or 10% due to higher average selling prices ($4.4 million) and
product sales volumes ($0.5 million impact), offset by lower tolling revenues of $1.1 million primarily caused by a decline in volumes.
The decline in velumes was primarily due to a reduction in customer demand.

ICO Brazil’s revenues increased $1.0 million or 14% during fiscal 2005 due to the stronger Brazilian Real compared to the
U.5. Dollar (31.1 million impact) and higher selling prices ($0.8 million impact) offset by the effect of lower customer demand which
reduced revenues by $0.9 million.

Gross Margins. Consolidated gross margins (calculated as the difference between revenues and cost of sales and services,
divided by revenues) were 18.0% in fiscal year 2005 compared to 18.6% during fiscal vear 2004, The reduction in gross margin was
caused by lower service and product sales volumes and an increase in product sales prices and hence higher sales revenues which
increased primarily due to rising resin prices. Higher resin prices have historically resulted in an increase in the market price of the
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Company’s products and, thus, higher selling prices, which may cause a reduction in gross margin. Partially offsetting this decline was
an improvement in the Company’s feedstock margin per ton (feedstock margin is equal to product sales revenues less raw material
costs). Although resin prices increased, the Company was able to maintain feedstock margin by passing along the higher resin costs in
the form of higher selling prices. Additionally, the Company successfully managed the timing of raw material purchases which also
benefited gross margins.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses (including stock option compensation
expense of $0.7 million in fiscal 2005 and $0.7 million in fiscal 2004) (*SG&A") increased $3.2 million or 10% during 2005. SG&A
increased in fiscal year 2005 as a result of higher compensation and benefits cost (including employee medical costs) of $0.8 million,
stronger foreign currencies compared to the U.S. Dollar (an impact of approximately $1.0 million) and an increase in severance costs of
$0.6 million. In addition, the Company incurred $1.0 miliion of Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs during fiscal year 2005
compared to $55,000 in fiscal year 2004, Professional accounting fees also increased $1.1 million primarily as a result of the higher
audit costs for fiscal 2005 due to Sarbanes-Oxley. These increases were partially offset by lower profit sharing expenses of $0.5
million. As a percentage of revenues, SG&A (including stock option compensation expense) declined to 12.5% of revenue during fiscal
year 2005 compared to 13.1% for fiscal year 2004.

Included in SG&A are the following expenses:
Fiscal Year Ended
September 30,

2005 2004 Change

{Doliars in Thousands)
Professional accounting fees $2,110 $1,010 £1,100
Severance expense 680 75 605
Third party Sarbanes - Oxley implementation expense 1,015 55 960
Total $3,805 $1.140 $2.665

Impairment, restructuring and other costs. Impairment, restructuring and other costs decreased $0.4 million or 43% in fiscal
2005 compared to fiscal 2004 due to events discussed below.

The Company’s China, Texas plant located near Beaumont suffered minor damage from Hurricane Rita in September
2005. As a result of the hurricane, the Company incurred $110,000 of costs in September 2005 associated with employee hardship
expenses and temporary plant expenses to get the facility operational again, During fiscal 2005, the Company relocated its
European technical center to a new location in the U.K. and recognized $0.2 million of costs. The Company also incurred $135,600
of additional costs associated with the closure of its Swedish manufacturing operation.

In connection with the closure of the Company’s Swedish manufacturing operation during the fourth quarter of fiscal
2004, the Company recognized $0.6 million of costs for severance, contract termination expenses and other related costs in fiscal
year 2004. [n addition, the Company incurred net severance costs of $160,000 during fiscal 2004 related to the termination of certain
employees in North America and Europe. In fiscal year 2004, the Company also incurred $55,000 of other costs associated with the
closure of a rotational mold fabrication business in the UK.

Operating income. Consolidated operating income improved $3.0 million or 57% during fiscal year 2005. The increase was
primarily due to the increase in gross profit offset by higher SG&A. Gross profit increased despite lower gross margins due to

improved feedstock margins exceeding the gross profit impact from lower sales and service volumes.

Operating income (loss) by segment and discussion of significant segment changes follows.
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Operating income (loss) by segment for the year ended September 30, 2005 compared 10 the year ended September 30, 2004

Operating income (loss) Fiscal Year Ended
September 30,
2005 2004 Change
(Dollars in Thousands)

1CO Europe §4.201 $2,400 $1,801

Bayshore Industrial 8.881 5,511 3,370

ICO Courtenay - Australasia 2,910 3,999 (1,089)

ICO Polymers North America 771 1,444 (673)

1CO Brazii (951} 113 (1,069)

Total reportable segments 15,812 13,472 2,340

General Corporate expense (6,934) (7,577 643

Stock option expenses and other {673) (679) 6

Consolidated $8,205 $5.216 $2,989
Operating income (loss) as a percentage of revenues Fiscal Year Ended September 30,

2005 2004 Increase

ICO Europe 3% 2% 1%
Bayshore Industrial 12% 9% 3%
ICO Courtenay - Australasia 6% 10% (4%)
1CO Polymers North America 2% 4% (2%)
ICO Brazil (11%) 2% (13%)
Consolidated 3% 2% 1%

1CO Europe’s operating income improved $1.8 million or 75%. This improvement was primarily a result of an increase in
feedstock margin per metric ton due to improved product sales pricing management (approximately $3.3 million positive impact) and a
reduction in manufacturing costs of $1.7 million due primarily to the closure and consolidation of the Company’s Swedish plant.
These improvements were partially offset by the impact of lower customer demand, which reduced votumes sold by 9%, and third-
party Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs of $0.3 million.

Bayshore Industrial’s operating income improved $3.4 million or 61% due to an increase in feedstock margin per metric ton
sold and growth in volumes. Bayshore was able to gain operating leverage as a result of the increase in volumes,

1CO Courtenay - Australasia’s operating income declined $1.1 million or 27% primarily as a result of a reduction in volumes
sold and an increase in SG&A of $1.6 million. The increase in SG&A was caused by an increase in payroll costs of $0.5 million, a
stronger Australian Dollar and New Zealand Dollar compared to the U.S. Dollar ($0.3 million impact), higher bad debt expense of $0.2
million, an increase in legal fees of $0.3 million and third party Sarbanes-Oxley implementation costs of $0.1 million.

1CO Polymers North America’s operating income declined $0.7 million or 47% to $0.8 million prirarily caused by higher
employee medical expenses of $1.2 million and lower tolling revenues caused mostly by reduced customer demand. These items were
partially offset by an improvement i feedstock margin per metric ton due to rising resin prices and better inventory management,
which increased operating income by $0.9 million, lower manufacturing costs (excluding medical expenses) of $0.6 million and lower
SG&A (excluding medical expenses) of $0.3 million.

ICO Brazil’s operating income (loss) declined $1.1 million to a loss of $1.0 million. The lower profitability was primarily due
to a reduction in feedstock margins of $0.3 million and higher bad debt expense of $0.3 million related primarily to certain slow paying
customers. The Brazilian market has been under pressure due to higher resin prices and a weak U_S. Dollar which reduced customer
demand. In addition, an extended drought in Southern Brazil has reduced customer demand within the agriculture segment of the
market.

General corporate expenses declined $0.6 million or 8% due to lower expenses related to lower payroll costs of $0.4 miltion, a
reduction in profit sharing expense of $0.5 million, a reduction in external legal fees of $0.2 million and lower employee placement
costs of $0.2 million. These reductions were partially offset by higher severance costs of $0.5 mitlion and higher external accounting
fees of $0.4 million due primarily to the audit for Sarbanes-Oxley.

31




Net Interest Expense. Net interest expense increased $0.2 million or 6% compared to fiscal 2004 due to an increase in average
debt during the year and higher interest rates.

Income Taxes. The Company’s effective income tax rate for continuing operations was an expense of 4% during fiscal 2005,
compared to a benefit of 54% during fiscal 2004. The change was partially due to the relation between pretax income or loss to
nondeductible items and other permanent differences and the mix of pretax income or loss generated by the Company s operations in
various taxing jurisdictions. In addition, during both fiscal years, the Company generated taxable income in certain European
subsidiaries that enabled those subsidiaries to utilize tax assets that were previously reserved of $1.0 million and $2.1 million in fiscal
years 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Income from continuing operations. Income from continuing operations improved from $3.9 million in fiscal 2004 to $5.0
million in fiscal 2005 due to the factors discussed above.

Loss From Discontinued Operations, net of income taxes. Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, decreased
from a loss of $3.6 million to a loss of $0.5 million. This improvement is primarily caused by a $5.0 million pre tax reserve placed
against the receivable of escrowed sales proceeds during fiscal 2004 relating to the sale of the Company’s Oilfield Services business to
NOV in 2002. The $0.5 million of loss during fiscal year 2005 relates primarily to legal and other expenses incurred related to
discontinued operations.

Net Income. Net Income improved $4.2 million from $0.3 million in fiscal 2004 to $4.5 million in fiscal 2005 due to the
factors discussed above.

Foreign Currency Translation. The fluctuations of the U.S Dollar against the Euro, Swedish Krona, British Pound, New
Zealand Dollar, Brazilian Real, Malaysian Ringgit and the Australian Dollar have impacted the translation of revenues and
expenses of the Company’s international operations. The table below summarizes the impact of changing exchange rates for the
above currencies between fiscal 2005 and 2004.

Revenues $8.4 million
Operating income 0.2 million
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 0.1 million
Net income 0.1 million

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any financial instruments classified as off-balance sheet (other than operating leases) as of
September 30, 2006 and 2005,

Forward-Looking Statements

The statements contained in all parts of this document, including, but not limited to, timing of new services or facilities,
ability 10 compete, future capital expenditures, effects of compliance with laws, fluctuation of the U.S. Dollar against foreign
currencies, matters relating to operating facilities, effect and cost of litigation and remediation, future liquidity, future acquisitions,
futur market conditions, reductions in expenses, derivative transactions, net operating losses, tax credits, tax refunds, demand for
the Company’s products and services, future growth plans, financial results and any other statements which are not historical facts
are forward-looking statements within the meaning of section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 that involve substantial risks and uncertaintics. When words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “cstimate,”
“intend,” “expect,” “plan” and similar expressions are used, they are intended to identify the statements as forward-looking. Actual
results, performance or achievements can differ materially from results suggested by these forward-looking statements due to a
number of factors, including results of operations, the Company’s financial condition, results of litigation, capital expenditures and
other spending requirements, demand for the Company’s products and services and those described below and elsewhere in this
document and those described in the Company’s other filings with the SEC.

Y ou should carefully consider the factors in “Item 1A, Risk Factors” and other information contained in this report. The

risks and uncertainties described are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us, which
we currently deem immaterial or which are similar to those faced by other companies in our industry or business in general,
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may also impair our business operations. I any of the risk factors actually occurs, our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected. In such case, the trading price of our Common Stock could
decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB"™) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS™) No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.
SFAS No. 154 changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. Previously, most
voluntary changes in accounting principles required recognition via a cumulative effect adjustment within net income of the period of
the change. SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements, unless it is impracticable to
determine cither the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. SFAS 154 also requires that
retrospective application of'a change in accounting principle be limited to the direct effects of the change. Indirect effects of a change
in accounting principle should be recognized in the period of the accounting change. SFAS 154 further requires a change in
depreciation, amortization or depletion method for long-lived, non-financial assets to be accounted for as a change in accounting
estimate elfected by a change in accounting principle. SFAS No.154 is effective for accounting changes made in fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2005: however, the Statement does not change the transition provisions of any existing accounting
pronouncements. The Company will adopt this statement effective October 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 154 is not expected to
have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

[n July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Starement No. 109 (“FIN 48™), which clarifies the accounting and disclosure for uncertain
tax positions, as defined. FIN 48 secks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the recognition and
measurement related to accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 requires the use of a two-step approach for recognizing and measuring tax
benefits taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and disclosures regarding uncertainties in income tax positions. The Company is
required to adopt FIN 48 effective October 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of initially adopting FIN 48 will be recorded as an
adjustment to opening retained carings in the year of adoption and will be presenied separately. Only tax positions that meet the more
likely than not recognition threshold at the effective date may be recognized on adoption of FIN 48. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact this new standard will have on its future results of operations and financial position.

In Scptember 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Emplover's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Pastretirement Plans—an amendmeint of SFAS Nos. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) (*SFAS No. 1587). SFAS No. 158 contains a number of
amendments to current accounting for defined benefit plans; however, the primary change is the requirement to recognize in the
balance sheet the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit plan measured as the difference between the fair value of plan
assets and the projected benefit obligation. Stockholders’ equity will also be increased or decreased (through “other comprehensive
income”) for the overfunded or underfunded status. SFAS No. 158 does not change the determination of pension plan liabilities or
assets, or the income statement recognition of periodic pension expense. The recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158
are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt these provisions of the standard as of
September 30, 2007. The Company has a defined benefit plan in its Holland and France subsidiaries. At September 30, 2006, the
projected benefit obligations of the Company’s plans exceeded plan assets by approximately $1.7 million. Had the Company adopted
the provisions of SFAS No. 158 as of September 30, 2006, Other Current Liabilities would have been increased by approximately $0.8
million, Deferred Income Taxes would have been reduced by approximately $0.2 million and Stockholders’ Equity would have been
reduced by approximately $0.6 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. [577). SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does net require any new fair value measurements, rather, its application will be made pursuant to
other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those years. This standard will be effective for
the Company starting with our interim period ending December 31, 2008. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 are to be applied
prospectively upon adoption, except for limited specified exceptions. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157 to
have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.
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[n September 2006, the Sccurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™) staft issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifyving Misstatements in Curvent Year Financial Statements {*SAB No.
108™). SAB No. 108 was issued in order to climinate the diversity of practice surrounding how public companies quantify financial
statement misstatements. The SEC statf, in SAB No. 108, established an approach that requires quantification of financial statement
misstatements based on the effects of the misstatements on cach of a company’s financial statements and the related financial statement
disclosures. SAB No. 108 permits existing public companies to initially apply its provisions either by (i) restating prior financial
statements as if SAB No. 108 had always been used or (ii) recording the cumulative effect of initially applying SAB No. [08. The
Company will imtially apply the provisions of SAB No. 108 in connection with the preparation of its annual financial statements for
the year ending September 30, 2007, The Company does not expect the initial application of SAB No. 108 to result in a restatement of
prior financial statements or the recording by the Company of a cumulative adjustment.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company’s primary market risk exposures include debt obligations carry variable interest rates, foreign currency
exchange risk and resin price risk. As of September 30, 2006, the Company had $45.8 mitlion of net investment in foreign wholly-
owned subsidiaries. The Company does not hedge the foreign exchange rate risk inherent with this non-U.S. Dollar denominated
investment. The Company dees enter into forward currency exchange contracts related to future purchase obligations denominated
in a nonfunctional currency. These forward currency exchange contracts qualify as cash flow hedging instruments and are highly
effective. The Company recognizes the amount of hedge ineffectiveness in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The hedge
ineffectiveness was not a significant amount for the twelve months ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
Company’s principle foreign currency exposures relate to the Euro, British Pound, Australian Dollar, New Zealand Dollar,
Malaysian Ringgit and Brazilian Real. The following table includes the total foreign exchange contracts outstanding on September
30, 2006 and September 30, 2005:

As of
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005
(Dollars in Thousands)

Notional value $3,565 $6.383
Fair market value 3,565 6,461
Maturity Dates October 2006 October 2005
through through

December 2006 February 2006

The Company’s revenues and profitability are impacted by the change in resin prices. The Company uses various resins
(primarily polyethylene) to make its products. As the price of resin increases or decreases, market prices for the Company’s
products will generally also increase or decrease. This will typically lead to higher or lower average sclling prices and will impact
the Company’s operating income and operating margin. The impact on operating income is due to a lag in matching the change in
raw material cost of goods sold and the change in product sales prices. As of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005, the
Company had $21.7 million and $20.3 million of raw material inventory and $19.3 million and $13.8 million of finished goods
inventory, respectively. The Company attempts to minimize its exposure to resin price changes by monitoring and carefully
managing the quantity of its inventory on hand and product sales prices.

The Company’s variable interest rates subject the Company to the risks of increased interest costs associated with any
upward movements in market interest rates. As of September 30, 2006, the Company had $20.5 million of variable interest rate
debt. The Company’s variable interest rates are tied to various bank rates. At September 30, 2006, based on our current level of
borrowings, a 1% increase in interest rates would increase interest expense annually by approximately $0.2 miliion.

Foreign Currency Intercompany Accounts and Notes Receivable. From time-to-time, the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries
provide capital to foreign subsidiaries of the Company through U.S. dollar denominated interest bearing promissory notes. In addition,
certain of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries also provide access to capital to other foreign subsidiaries of the Company through
foreign currency denominated interest bearing promissory notes. Such funds are generally used by the Company’s foreign subsidiaries
to purchase capital assets and/or for general working capital needs. In addition, the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries sel! products to the
Company’s foreign subsidiaries in U.S. dollars on trade credit terms, The Company’s foreign subsidiaries also sell products to other
foreign subsidiaries of the Company denominated in foreign currencies that may not be the functional currency of the foreign
subsidiaries. Because these intercompany debts are accounted for in the local functional currency of the foreign subsidiary, any
appreciation or depreciation of the foreign currencies the transactions are denominated in will result in a gain or loss, respectively, to
the Consolidated Statement of Operations. These intercompany loans are eliminated in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet.
At September 30, 2006, the Company had the following significant outstanding intercompany amounts as described above:

Country of subsidiary with Country of subsidiary with Amount in USS as of Currency denomination

intercompany receivable intercompany payable September 30, 2006 of receivable
New Zealand Australia $1.6 million New Zealand Dollar
New Zealand Malaysia $1.2 million New Zealand Dollar
U.s. ltaly $1.1 million U.S. Dollar
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The response to this [tem 1s submitted as a separate section of this report. See index to this information on Page F-! of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K,

Item 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures, as defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Commission’s rules
and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and
evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and management is required
to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

The Company carried out an assessment, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management,
including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation
of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as of September 30, 2006. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded, based on the material weakness described below, that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
were not effective at a reasonable level of assurance as of September 30, 2006.

In light of the material weakness described below, management performed additional analysis and other procedures to ensure
that the Company's consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Accordingly, management believes that the finangial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly present in all
material respects the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financiat reporting, as defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of tinancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, the Company conducted an cvaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
the framework in “fnternal Control - Integrated Framewor&” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission ("COSO"™).

A matcrial weakness 1s a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likelihood that a materiat misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. As of September
30, 2006, the Company did not maintain effective controls over the accounting for cumulative preferred stock in the earnings per share
calculation. Specifically, the Company did not maintain effective controls over the accounting for cumulative preferred stock in the
calculation of the Company's basic and diluted earnings per share. This control deficiency resulted in the restatement of the
consolidated financial statements for the periods ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 and for each of the quarters ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, March 31, 2006 and 2005, June 30, 2006 and 2005 and September 30, 2003, and resuited in an audit adjustment to the

36




consolidated financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2006. Additionally, this control deficiency could tesult in
misstatements of the earnings per share amounts that would result in a material misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated
financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, management has concluded that this control deficiency
constitutes a material weakness.

As aresult of the material weakness described above, management has concluded that the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2006 is not effective based on criteria established in Internal Conirol - Integrated Framework
issued by the COSQ.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of September 30,

2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report
included herein.

Remediation of the Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management has determined that, as of the date of this filing, the material weakness in the Company's internal control over
financial reporting with respect to accounting for cumulative preferred stock in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share in
accordance with SFAS No. 128 has been remediated. Management's remediation efforts resulted in the inclusion of enhanced

procedures in management's review of disclosures in the financial statements designed to ensure the appropriate accounting for the
effects of cumulative preferred stock in the Company's earnings per share calculation.

Changes In Internal Control and Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2006 that
materially affected, or were reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference te information under the caption “Proposal 1 — Election
of Directors™ and to the information under the caption “Section 16(a)” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement (the “Proxy
Statement™) for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. The Proxy Statement or the information to be so incorporated will be
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™) not later than 120 days subsequent to September 30, 2006.

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Ethics that applies to, among others, its Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Otfficer and Chief Accounting Officer. The Company’s Code of Business Ethics is available upon request by contacting
the Company’s General Counsel at (713) 351-4100 or on our website at www.icopolymers.com. [f we make any substantive
amendments to the Code of Business Ethics or grant any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of the Code of
Business Ethics applicable to our Chicf Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Chief Accounting Officer, we will make a
public disclosure of the nature of such amendment or waiver.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders,

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2007
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2007
Annual Meeting of Sharcholders.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a)( 1) and (a)(2) The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitted as a separate section of this report on page F-1.
{b) Exhibits required by Item 601 of S-K;

The tollowing instruments and documents are inciuded as Exhibits to this Form 10-K. Exhibits incorporated by reference
are so indicated by parenthetical information.

Exhibit No. Exhibit
3.1 - Adfticles of Incorporation of the Company dated March 20, 1998 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to Form 10-Q dated August
13, 1998)
3.2 - Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company dated August 9, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Form 10-Q
dated August 12, 2005)
3.3 - Statement of Designation of $6.75 Convertible Exchangeable Preferred Stock dated March 30, 1998 (filed as
Exhibit 3.2 1o Form 10-K dated December 23, 1998)
34 - Certificate of Amendment of Statement of Designation Establishing $6.75 Convertible Exchangeable Preferred
Stock (fited as Exhibit 4.1 to Form 10-Q dated August 13, 2004}
3.5  Certificate of Amendment of Statement of Designation Establishing $6.75 Convertible Exchangeable Preferred
Stock, effective November 13, 2006 (filed as Appendix A to Schedule 14C dated October 20, 2006)
3.6 - Certificate of Designation of Junior Participating Preferred Stock of 1CO Holdings, Inc. dated March 30, 1998
(filed as Exhibit 3.3 to Form 10-K dated December 23, 1998)
10.1  Amendment and Ratitication Agreement dated September 15, 2006 between Computershare [nvestor Services LLC
and 1CO, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated September 18, 2006)
10.2  Credit Agreement dated as of October 27, 2006 among ICO, Inc., Bayshore Industrial L.P. and 1CO Polymers
North America, Inc. as borrowers and KeyBank National Association as administrative agent for the Lenders.
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated October 30, 2006)
10.3 - Purchase Agreement dated July 2, 2002, by and among Varco International, Inc., Varco L.P., Varco Coating Lid.,
as Buyers, and [CO, Inc. ICO Global Services, Inc., 1CO Worldwide, Inc., ICO Worldwide Tubular Services Pte
Ltd., The Innovation Company, S.A. de C.V. and ICO Worldwide (UK) Ltd, as Sellers (filed as Exhibit 10.1 1o
Form 8-K dated July 3, 2002)
{04  Agreement of Settlement and Release in Full dated November 21, 2006 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 o Form 8-K dated
November 22, 2006)
10.5 - 1CO, Inc. 1985 Stock Option Plan, as amended (filed as Exhibit B to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement
dated April 27, 1987 for the 1987 Annual Meeting of Shareholders)
10.6 - Fourth Amended and Restated 1993 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors of ICO, Inc. (filed as Exhibit
10.1 to form 10-Q dated August 7, 2006)
10.7 - 1994 Stock Optien Plan of [CO, Inc. (filed as Exhibit A to Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement dated June 24,
1994 for the 1994 Annual Meeting of Shareholders)
10.8 - First Amended and Restated 1CO, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Form 10-
K dated December 8, 2005)
10.9 - First Amended and Restated 1CO, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan (filed as Exhibit 10,11 to the Company’s Form 10-
K dated December 8, 2005)
10.10 - Fourth Amended and Restated 1C0O, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q dated August
7, 2006)
10.11*  Incentive Stock Option Agreement (the Company’s standard form for employee stock option agreemenis)
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Exhibit No. Exhibit

10,12 - Stock Option Agreement between [CO, Inc. and A. John Knapp, Jr., dated October 3, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
form 8-K dated October 7, 2005)

10.13 - Stock Option Agreement between [CO, Inc. and A. John Knapp, Jr., dated November 18, 2005 (filed as Exhibit
10.16 to Form 10-K dated December 8, 2005)

10.14 - Employment Agreement between ICO, Inc. and A. John Knapp, Jr., executed on October 5, 2003, to be effective
as of October 1, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to form 8-K dated October 7, 2005)

10.15*  First Amendment to Employment Agreement between 1CO, Inc. and A. John Knapp, Jr., dated October 1, 2006, to

be effective August 30, 2006

10.16 - Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between [CO, Inc. and Jon C. Biro, dated January 28,
2004 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q dated January 30, 2004)

10.17 - First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between ICQ, Inc. and Jon C. Biro,
dated February 11, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q dated February 11, 2003)

10.18  Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between [CO, Inc. and Jon Biro,
dated January 20, 2006. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated January 20, 2006)

10.19 - Employment Contract by and between Dario Eduardo Masutti and J.R. Courtenay (N.Z.) Limited, dated March 20,
1998 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q dated February 11, 2005)

10.20 - Agreement by and between Derek Bristow and 1CO Europe B.V., dated July 17, 2003 (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to
Form 10-Q dated February 11, 2005)

10.21 - Agreement between Derek Bristow and [CO Europe B.V. dated July 6, 2003, and exccuted by Mr. Bristow on July
25, 2005 (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 10-Q dated August 12, 2005)

10.22 - Stock Option Agreement between Gregory T. Barmore and 1CO, Inc. dated November 18, 2005 (filed as Exhibit
10.1 to Form 8-K dated March 15, 2006)

10.23 - Stock Option Agreement between Gregory T. Barmore and ICO, Inc. dated November 18, 2005 (filed as Exhibit
10.2 to Form 8-K dated March 15, 2006)

21.1* - Subsidiaries of the Company

23.1* - Consent of independent accountants

31.1* - Certification of Chief Executive Officer of ICQ, Inc. pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 7241

31.2* - Certification of Chief Financial Officer of ICQ, Inc. pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 7241

32.1* - Certification of Chief Executive Officer of ICO, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1330

32.2% - Certification of Chief Financial Officer of ICO, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

*Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

1CQO, Inc.
By: /s/ A. John Knapp, Jr.
A, John Knapp, Jr.
President, Chief Executive Officer, and
Director (Principal Executive Officer)
Date: December 13, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ Gregory T. Barmore Chairman of the Board December 13, 2006

Gregory T. Barmore

/s/ A. John Knapp, Jr. President, Chief Executive Officer, and December 13, 2006
A. John Knapp, Jr. Director (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ Jon C. Biro Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, and Director December 13, 2006
Jon C. Biro (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ Eric Q. English Director December 13, 2006

Eric O. English

/s/ David E.K. Frischkorn, Jr. Director December 13, 2006
David E.K. Frischkorn, Jr.

/s/ Daniel R. Gaubert Director December 13, 2006
Daniel R. Gaubert

/s/ John F. Gibson Director December 13, 2006
John F. Gibson

/s/ Charles T. McCord, III Director December 13, 2006
Charles T. McCord, 111

/s/ Warren W. Wilder Director December 13, 2006
Warren W, Wilder
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Beard of Directors and Stockholders of 1CO, Inc.:

We have completed integrated audits of ICO, Inc.’s 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial statements and of its internal control
over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006 and an audit of its 2004 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented
below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of 1CO, Inc. and its subsidiaries at September 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended September 30, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Inaddition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying
index presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth thercin when read in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements, These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. OQur responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement
schedules based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of {inancial statements
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management. and cvaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company restated its consolidated financial statements for the
years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004,

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, we have audited management's assessment, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
appearing under [tem 9A, that the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of’ September
30. 2006, because of the effect of a material weakness related to ineffective controls over the accounting for cumulative preferred
stock in the earnings per share calculation, based on criteria established in farernal Control — Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible
tor maintaining effective internat control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducied our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of
internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating Lthe design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions,

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets ol the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal contrel over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of cftectiveness to future periads are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree ol compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A malerial weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood
that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. As of September 30,
2006, the following material weakness has been identified and included in management's assessment:

The Company did not maintain effective controls over the accounting for cumulative preferred stock in the earnings per share
calculation. Specifically, the Company did not maintain effective controls over the accounting for cumulative preferred stock in
the caleulation of the Company's basic and diluted earnings per share. This contro! deficiency resulted in the restatement of the
consolidated financial statements for the periods ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 and for each of the quarters ended December
31, 2005 and 2004, March 31, 2006 and 2005, Junc 30, 2006 and 2005 and Scptember 30, 2003, and resulted in an audit
adjustrnent to the consolidated financizl statements for the period ended September 30, 2006. Additionally. this control deficiency
could result in misstatements of the camings per share amounts that would result in a material misstatement ol the annual or
interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.  Accordingly, management has concluded that
this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing
and extent of audit tests applicd in our audit of the 2006 consolidated financial statements, and our opinion regarding the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting does not affect our opinion on those consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, management's assessment that 1CO, Inc. did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as off
Septernber 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in futernal Control - hiegrated
Framework issued by the COSQ. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the
achicvement ol the objectives of the control eriteria, ICO, Inc. has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of September 30, 2006, based on criteria established in fnzernal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO,

PricewaterhouscCoopers LLP
Houston, Texas 77002
December 13, 2006
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ICO, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables (less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $2.509 and $2,144, respectively)

Inventories

Deferred income taxes

Prepaid and other current assets
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES, STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings under credit facilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Income taxes payable
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion
Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders® equity:

Convertible exchangeable preferred stock, without par value — 345,000
shares authorized; 322,500 shares issued and outstanding with a
liquidation preference of $40,410 and $38,234, respectively

Undesignated preferred stock, without par value — 105,000 shares authorized;
No shares issued and outstanding

Common stock, without par value — 50,000,000 shares authorized;
25,792,168 and 25,544,997 shares issued and outstanding, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

September 30,

2006

2005

(In thousands, except share data)

$17,427 $3,234
67,742 57,132
41,961 35,006
2.195 2,579
6,775 5,542
136,100 103.493
50,884 49,274
8.585 8,831
2,392 2,657
$197,961 $164.255
$17,214 $%,089
4,696 5,657
35,809 31,387
5,360 4,181
4,188 1,459
11,332 10,438
78,599 62111
21,559 18,993
4210 4,383
1,876 1,678
106,244 87,165
13 i3
45,087 44,265
104,844 104,134
(154) (1.245)
(58,073) (70,077)
91,717 77.000
$197,961 $164,255

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




1CO, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:

Sales

Services
Total revenues
Cost and expenses:

Cost of sales (exclusive of depreciation shown separately below)
Cost of services (exclusive of depreciation shown separately below)

Selling, general and administrative
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles
Impairment, restructuring and other costs
Operating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Other income (expense)
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of benefit for income
taxes of $786, $268, and $1,955, respeciively
Net income
Undeclared and unpaid Preferred Stock dividends, as restated
Net income {loss) applicable to common stock, as restated

Basic and diluted income per share:
Basic income from continuing operations, as restated
Basic net income (loss) per common share, as restated

Dtluted income from continuing operations, as restated

Diluted net income (loss) per common share, as restated

Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding, as restated

Years Ended September 30,

2006

2005

(restated)

2004

(restated)

(In thousands, except share data)

$289,163 $262,818 $221,700
35,168 33,788 35,825
324,331 296,606 257,525
238,735 220,961 186,817
22,493 22,179 22,854
34,284 37,001 33,788
7,287 7,584 7,779

99 i88 217

118 488 854
21315 8.205 5216
(2,091) (2.836) (2,663)
75 (149 (35)
19,299 5,220 2,518
5,836 218 (1.370)
13,463 5,002 3,888
(1.459) (497) (3,631)
$12,004 $4,505 $ 257
(2.176) (2,176) (2,176)
$9,828 $2,329 $(1.919)
$.44 $.11 $.07

$.38 $.09 $(.08)
$.43 $.11 $.07
$.37 $.09 $(.08)
25,680,000 25442000 25,276,000
26,255,000 25816000 25,329,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




1CO, INC,
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities: (Dollars in thousands)
Net income $12,004 $4,505 $257
Loss from discontinued operations 1,459 497 3,631
Depreciation and amortization 7,386 7,772 7,996
Stock option compensation expense 857 673 679
Impairment, restructuring and other costs - - 463
Changes in assets and liabilities providing/(requiring) cash:
Receivables (9,021) (3,974) (9.526)
Inventories (6.121) (2,599) (7,125)
Other assets (1,874) (1,424) 687
Income taxcs payable 3,571 609 350
Deferred taxes 1,346 {932) (684)
Accounts payable 3612 {479) 8.514
Other liabilities 279 20! (426)
Net cash provided by operating activities by continuing operations 13,498 4,849 4,816
Net cash used for operating activities by
discontinued operations (353) (822) {1,431)
Net cash provided by operating activities 13,145 4,027 3,385
Cash flows used for investing activities:
Capital expenditures (3,080) (5,039) (4,725)
Proceeds from disposition of property, plant and equipment 13 953 450
Net cash used for investing activities for continuing operations (8,067} {4,086) {4,275)
Cash flows provided by (used for) financing activities:
Common stock transactions 422 214 149
Increase in short-term borrowings under credit facilities, net 7977 137 2,456
Procecds from long-term debt 11,930 13,826 1,550
Repayments of long-term debt (10,990) (12,437) (5,597)
Debt financing cosis (326) (267) —
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities for
continuing operations 9,013 1,473 (1,442)
Effect of exchange rates on cash 102 (111} 149
Net increase {decreasc) in cash and equivalents 14,193 1,303 (2,183)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,234 1,931 4,114
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $17.427 $3,234 $1,931
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for;
[nterest 3(2,365) $(3.166) $(2,692)
Income taxes (2,350 (3.461) (1,976)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

ICO, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company™) manufacture specialty resins and concentrates and provide specialized
polymers processing services. The specialty resins manufactured by the Company are typically produced into a powder form.
Concentrates produced by the Company generally are mixed by customers with polymer filler resins 1o give plastic films
desired characteristics and to reduce customer’s raw material costs. Concentrates are polymers loaded with high levels of
chemical and organic additives that are melt-blended into base resins to give plastic films and other finished products desired
physical properties. The Company also provides toll processing services including ambient grinding, jet milling, compounding
and ancillary services for polymer resins produced in pellet form as well as other material. These products and services are
provided through the Company’s 18 operating facilitics located in 9 countries in North America, Europe, Australasia and South
America. The Company's customers include major chemical companies, pelymer production affiliates of major oil exploration
and production companies, and manufacturers of plastic products.

The Company was incorporated in 1978 under the laws of the state of Texas. During fiscal years 2003 and 2002, the
Company completed the sale of its oilfield services business (“Oilfield Services™). References to the “Company™ include ICO,
Inc.. its subsidiaries and predecessors unless the context indicates otherwise.

Principles of consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of [CO, Inc.
and 1ts wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial siatements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent asscts and liabilities, if any, at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The more significant areas requiring use of estimates
relate to employee benefit liabilities, valuation allowances for deferred tax assets, workers compensation, inventory reserves,
allowance for doubtful accounts related to accounts receivable and commitments and contingencies.

Estimates surrounding employee benefit liabilities are related to the Company maintaining a partially self-insured
medical plan in the United States (with stop loss insurance coverage limiting the Company's expense to $0.1 million per
covered person per year). Estimates are required in evaluating the Company’s medical expense incurred, but not paid due to
the timing difference between when an employee reccives medical care and the time the claim is processed and paid by the
Company (typically a two to three month timing difference). The valuation of deferred tax assets is based upon estimates of
future pretax income in determining the ability 1o realize the deferred tax assets in each taxing jurisdiction. Estimates for
workers’ compensation liabilities are due to the Company being partially self-insured in the United States (with the exception
of fiscal year 2004) with stop loss insurance coverage limiting the Company’s expense to $0.2 million per claim in fiscal year
2006, a dechne from $0.3 million in fiscal year 2005. Estimates are made for ultimate costs associated with open workers’
compensation claims as well as for claims not yet reported. Inventory reserves are estimated based upon the Company’s
review of its inventory. This review requires the Company 1o estimate the fair market value of certain inventory that has
become old or obsolete. Determining the amount of the allowance for doubtful accounts involves estimating the collectibility
of customer accounts receivable balances, Estimates surrounding commitments and contingencies are related primarily to
titigation claims for which the Company evaluates the circumstances surrounding the claims to determine how much expense,
ilany, the Company should record. Actual results could differ from the estimates discussed above. Management believes that
its estimates are reasonable.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue and Related Cost Recognition - The Company’s accounting policy regarding revenue recognition is 1o
recognize revenue when all of the following criteria are met:

»  Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; The Company has received an order from a customer.

= Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered: For product sales, revenue recognition occurs when
title and risk of ownership have passed to the customer. For service revenue, revenue recognition occurs
upon the completion of service.

= Seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable: Sales prices are agreed with the customer before
delivery has occurred or the services have been rendered.

= Collectibility is reasonably assured: The Company has a customer credit policy 1o ensure collectibility is
reasonably assured.

Revenues billed to customers related to shipping and handling are included in revenues while the associated shipping and
handling costs to the Company are included in cost of sales and services.

Cash and cash cquivalents - The Company considers all highly-liquid debt securities with a maturity of three months
or less when purchased (o be cash equivalents. Those securities are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and bear
insigniticant risk of changes in value due to their short maturity period.

Trade Reccivables ~ Trade receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount and typically do not bear interest. The
allowance for doubtlul accounts is the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Company’s
existing accounts receivable. The allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed quarterly. Past due balances are reviewed
individually for collectibility. Account balances are charged off against the allowance when it is probable the receivable will
not be recovered. The Company does not have any off -balance sheet credit exposure related to customers.

Inventories - inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined by the first-in, first-out
method.

Property, plant and equipment - The costs of property, plant and equipment, including renewals and improvements
which extend the life of existing properties, are capitalized and depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the various classes of assets as follows:

Classification Years
Machinery and equipment 1-20
Buildings 15-25
Land and sile improvements 2-25

Leaschold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the economic life of the assct or the
lease term. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. The cost of property, plant and equipment
sold or otherwise retired and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resultant gain or loss
is included n other income (expense).

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment — Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever an event or change in circumstances indicates the carrying amount of an asset or group of assets may not be
recoverable. The impairment review includes comparison of undiscounted future cash tlows expecied to be generated by the
assct or group of assets with the associated assets” carrying value. If the carrying value of the asset or group of assets exceeds
the expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges), an impairment loss is recognized to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill - The Company does ot amortize goodwill. However, the Company tests annually for impairment (and in
interim periods if certain events occur indicating that the carrying value of goodwill and/or indefinite-lived intangible assets
may be impaired) using the discounted cash flow method. The Company’s goodwill is recorded in Bayshore Industrial, Inc.
and [CO Courtenay-Australasia. The Company completed its annual impairment testing on September 30, 2006 which resuited
in no impairment loss being recognized.

Currency Translation - Amounts in foreign currencies are transiated into U.S. dollars. When local functional
currency is translated to U.S. dollars, the effects are recorded as a separate component of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss).
Exchange gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are recognized in earnings. Net foreign currency
transaction gains (losses) were not significant in fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004.

The fluctuations of the U.S Dollar against the Euro, Swedish Krona, British Pound, New Zealand Dollar, Brazilian
Real, Malaysian Ringgit and the Australian Dollar have impacted the translation of revenues and expenses of the Company’s
international operations. The table below summarizes the impact of changing exchange rates for the above currencies for
fiscal years 2006 and 2005,
Years Ended

September 30,
2006 2005
Revenues $(3.8) million $8.4 million
Operating income {0.3) million 0.2 million
Income from continuing operations before income taxes (0.2) million 0.1 mitlion
Net income {0.2) million 0.1 million

Stock Options — Effective October 1, 2005, SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, became effective for the
Company. This standard requires, among other things, the Company to expense share-based payment transactions using the
grant-date fair value based method. The Company prospectively adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No.
123 on October 1, 2002, thus the adoption of the revised standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements. Outstanding awards under the Company’s plans vest over periods ranging from immediate vesting to four years.
The Company expenses the fair value of stock option grants over the vesting period, where applicable. 1n stock option grants
with a graded vesting schedule, the Company recognizes the fair value of the stock option grant over the requisite service
period for the entire award and ensures that the amount recognized at any date at least equals the portion of the grant-date
value of the stock option award that has vested.

Environmental - Environmental expenditures that retate to current operations are expensed as incurred. Expenditures
that relate to an existing condition caused by past operations and which do not contribute to generating current or future
revenue, are also expensed. Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments and/or remedial efforts are probable and
the costs can be reasonably estimated. Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with the earlier of completion of a
feasibility study or the Company's commitment to a formal plan of action. Also, see Note 16 — “Commitments and
Contingencies.”

Income taxes - The provision for income taxes includes federal, state, and foreign income taxes currently payable and
deferred based on currently enacted tax laws. Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax consequences of differences
between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Company reduces deferred tax assets by a valuation
allowance when, based on its estimates, it is more likely than not that a portion of those assets will not be realized in a future
period.

The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxes on foreign subsidiaries’ undistributed earnings intended to be

permanently reinvested in foreign operations. The Company has unremitted earnings from foreign subsidiaries of
approximately $7.9 million.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Forward Exchange Agreements - All derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge accounting, are
recognized in the financial statements and measured at fair value, Changes in the fair value of derivative linancial instruments
are recognized in stockholders” equity (as a component of comprehensive income (loss)). The Company recognizes the amount
ol hedge ineffectiveness in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The hedge ineffectiveness was not a significant amount
for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, Cash flows from the derivative financial instruments which are
classified as cash flow hedges have been classified in the same category as the item being hedged in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows.

The Company’s primary market risk exposures include resin price risk, debt obligations carrying variable interest
rates and forward currency exchange contracts intended to hedge accounts payable obligations denominated in currencies other
than a given operation’s functional currency. Forward currency exchange contracts are usced by the Company as a method to
establish a fixed functional currency cost for certain raw material purchases denominated in non-functional currency (typically
the U.S. dollar). '

Sales Taxes — The Company presents its revenues in the Statement of Operations net of any sales (axes (excluded
from revenucs).

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year amounts in order to conform to the
current year classifications including separately showing “Income taxes payable™ in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and
separately showing “Increase in short-term berrowings under credit facilities, net™ in the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Statemment of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™)No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No.
3. SFAS No. 154 changes the requirements for the accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. Previously,
most voluntary changes in accounting principles required recognition via a cumulative effect adjustment within net income of'the
period of the change. SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements, unless it is
impracticable to determine cither the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. SFAS
154 also requircs that retrospective application of a change in accounting principle be limited to the direct effecis of the change.
Indirect effects of a change in accounting principle should be recognized in the period of the accounting change. SFAS 154 turther
requires a change in depreciation, amortization or depletion method for long-lived, non-financial assets to be accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate effected by a change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes
made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2003 however, the Statement does not change the transition provisions of any
existing accounting pronouncements. The Company will adopt this statement effective October 1, 2006. The adoption of SFAS
No. 154 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s cansolidated financial position, results of operations or cash
flows,

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Acconnting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”), which clarifies the accounting and disclosure for
uncertain tax positions, as defined. FIN 48 seeks to reduce the diversity in practice associated with certain aspects of the
recognition and measurement related to accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 requires the use of a two-step approach for
recognizing and measuring tax benefits taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and disclosures regarding uncertainties in
income tax positions, The Company is required to adopt FIN 48 effective October 1, 2007, The cumulative effect of initially
adopting FIN 48 will be recorded as an adjustment to opening retained eamings in the year of adoption and will be presented
separately. Only tax positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold at the effective date may be recognized on
adoption of FIN 48. The Company is currently evatuating the impact this new standard will have on its future results of operations
and financial position.

In September 2006. the FASB issued SFAS No. 138, Emplover's Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other
Postretivement Plans—an amendment of SFAS Nos. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) (“SFAS No. 1587). SFAS No. 138 contains a
number of amendments to current accounting for defined benefit plans: however, the primary change is the requirement to
rccognize in the balance sheet the overfunded or underfunded status of'a defined benefit plan measured as the difference between




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation. Stockholders’ equity will also be increased or decreased (through
“other comprehensive income”) for the overfunded or underfunded status. SFAS No. 158 does not change the determination of
pension plan liabilitics or assets, or the income statement recognition of periodic pension expense. The recognition and disclosure
provisions of SFAS No. 158 are effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt these
provisions of the standard as of September 30, 2007. The Company has a defined benefit plan in its Holland and France
subsidiaries. At September 30, 2006, the projected benefit obligations of the Company’s plans exceeded plan assets by
approximately $1.7 million. Had the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 158 as of September 30, 2006, Other Current
Liabilities would have been increased by approximately $0.8 million, Deferred Income Taxes would have been reduced by
approximately $0.2 million and Stockholders® Equity would have been reduced by approximately $0.6 million.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 1577). SFAS No. 157
defines fair value. establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 does not require any new fair value measurements, rather, its
application will be made pursuant to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. SFAS No.
157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within
those years. This standard will be effective for the Company starting with our interim period ending December 31, 2008, The
provisions of SFAS No. 157 are to be applied prospectively upon adoption, except for limited specified exceptions. The Company
does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 157 to have a material impact on our financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements
("SAB No. 1087). SAB No. 108 was issued in order to eliminate the diversity of practice surrounding how public companies
quantify financial staiement misstatements. The SEC staff, in SAB No. 108, established an approach that requires quantification of
financial statement misstatements based on the effects of the misstatements on each of a company’s financial statements and the
related financial statement disclosures. SAB No. 108 permits existing public companies to initially apply its provisions either by
(1) restating prior financial statements as if SAB No. 108 had always been used or (ii) recording the cumulative effect of initially
applying SAB No. 108. The Company will initially apply the provisions of SAB No. 108 in connection with the preparation of its
annual financial statements for the year ending September30, 2007. The Company does not expect the initial application of SAB
No. 108 to result in a restatement of prior financial statements or the recording by the Company of a cumulative adjustment.

Note 2 — Restatement of Previously Reported Earnings Per Share

During fiscat 2006, an error was discovered in how the Company’s previously reported earnings per share were
calculated. The Company did not deduct undeclared and unpaid Preferred Stock dividends, beginning with the guarter ended
March 31, 2003, that accrue to the liquidation preference of the Company’s outstanding Preferred Stock from net income (loss) in
calculating earnings per share. The restatement does not impact previously reported revenues, cash flow, net income (loss) or
balance sheet components. The Company has restated its earnings per share for the years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 and
for each of the quarters ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, March 31, 2006 and 2005, June 30, 2006 and 2005, and September
30, 2005.

The following tables present selected Consolidated Statement of Operations data for the years ended September 30, 2005
and 2004. The Company previously reported basic earnings per share erroneously by not deducting the unpaid and undeclared
Preferred Stock dividends of $544,000 per quarter and $2,176,000 per year from net income (loss) in deriving basic earnings per
share. In computing diluted earnings per share, the Company erroneously did not deduct the unpaid and undeclared Preferred
Stock dividends from net income (loss), and incorrectly assumed the conversion of the Preferred Stock by including the resultant
common equivalent shares in the diluted earnings per share computation.
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Selected Consolidated Statement of Operations data:

Years Ended September 30,

2005 2004
As Reported  As Restated  As Reported As Restated

{In thousands, except share data)

Total revenues $296,606 $296.606 $257,525 $257.525
Operating income 8,205 8,205 5,216 5216
Income from continuing operations 5,002 5,002 3,888 3,888
Loss from discontinued operations (497} (497} (3,631 (3,631}
Net income $4,505 $4,505 $257 $257
Undeclared and unpaid Preferred Stock dividends - (2,176) - (2,176)
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock 54,505 $2,329 $257 $(1,919)
Basic and diluted income {loss) per share:
Basic income from continuing operations 3.20 $.11 $.15 $.07
Basic net income (loss) per common share $.18 $.09 $.01 $.08)
Diluted income from continuing operations $.17 $.11 5.14 5.07
Diluted net income (loss) per common share $.13 $.09 $.01 $(.08)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 25442000 25442000 25,276,000 25,276,000
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 29,350,600  25.816,000 28 863.600 25,329,000

See Note 21 “Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)” for the effect of the restatement upon quarterly
unaudited data.

Note 3 - Concentration of Credit Risk

The primary customers of the Company's polymers processing business segment are large producers of polymers
(which include major chemical companies and polymers production affiliates of major oil production companies), and end
users such as rotational molders. No single customer accounted for more than 10% of revenues during fiscal years 2006, 2005
and 2004. The Company has long-term contract arrangements with many polymers processing customers whereby it has
agreed 1o process or manufacture certain polymers products for a single or multi-year term at an agreed-upon fee structure.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of
trade reccivables. The Company provides allowances for potential credit losses when collection becomes doubtful.
Accordingly, management considers such credit risk to be limited.

Note 4 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable, long-
term debt and foreign currency derivative contracts. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
accounts payable and short term debt approximate fair value due to the highly liquid nature of these short-term instruments.

Based on borrewing rates currently available to the Campany for loans with similar terms, the carrying value of long-term debt
approximates fair value.
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The Company does enter into forward currency exchange contracts related to future purchase obligations denominated
in a non-functional currency. These forward currency exchange contracts qualify as cash flow hedging instruments and are
highly effective, The following table includes the total foreign exchange contracts outstanding on September 30, 2006 and
September 30, 2005:

As of
September 30, September 30,
2006 2005
{Dollars in Thousands)
Notional value $3,565 $6,383
Fair market value 3,565 6,461
Maturity dates October 2006 October 2005
through through
December 2006 February 2006

Note § - Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

1CO Courtenay- Bayshore
Australasia industrial Total
Balance at September 30, 2004 $4,226 $4,493 $8,719
Foreign currency impact 12 - 112
Balance at September 30, 2605 4,338 4,493 8,831
Foreign currency impact (246) - (246)
Balance at September 30, 2006 $4,092 $4,493 $8.585

Note 6 — Impairment, Restructuring and Other Costs
During fiscal year 2006, the Company incurred costs of $55,000 as a result of Hurricane Rita (caused minor damage to
the Company’s China, Texas location) and fease cancellation costs of $63,000 associated with the former location of its European

technical center, which was relocated in fiscal 2005,

The Company incurred costs in fiscal year 2005 as a result of Hurricane Rita (§110,000), the relocation of its European
technical center ($0.2 million), and the 2004 closure of its Swedish manufacturing operation ($135,000).

During fiscal year 2004, the Company recognized costs associated with the closure of the Company’s Swedish
operation ($0.6 million) during fiscal year 2004, severance costs related to the termination of certain employees in North
America and Europe (30.2 million) and costs associated with the closure of a rotational mold fabrication business in the UK
($55,000).

All impairment, restructuring and other costs have been paid as of September 30, 2006.

Note 7 — Inventories

Inventories at September 30 consisted of the following:

2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)
Raw materials $21,722 $20,276
Finished goods 19,286 13,815
Supplies 953 915
Total Inventory 341,961 335,006
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Note 8 — Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, at cost, consisted of the following at September 30:

Total
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Machinery and equipment $91,543 $82,548
Buildings 24,623 23,738
Land and site improvements 5,492 5,265
Construction in progress 2,145 2,575
Other 719 634

124,522 114,760
Accumulated depreciation {73,638) {65,486)
Property, plant and equipment, net $50,884 $49,274
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Note 9 - Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at September 30, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following. Obligations denominated in a foreign

currency have been translated using year-end exchange rates.

Term loan of the Company’s Italian subsidiary, collateralized by a mortgage over the subsidiary’s real
estate, Principal and interest paid quarterly with a fixed interest rate of 5.2% through June 2016.

Term loans of two of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries, collateralized by a mortgage over the
subsidiarics’ real estate. Principal and interest paid monthly with a fixed interest rate of 6.0% through
April 2020,

Term loans of one of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries, collateralized by a mortgage over the subsidiary’s
rea) estate. Principal and interest paid monthly with a fixed interest rate of 6.0% through May 2021.

Term loan of the Company’s U.K. subsidiary, collatcralized by property, plant and equipment of the
subsidiary. Interest paid monthly with a fixed interest ratc (due to an interest rate swap with same terms
as the debt) of 7.2% through March 2015. Principal repayments made monthly,

Term loan of the Company’s French subsidiary. Principal and interest paid quarterly with a variable
interest rate through September 2010. Interest rate as of September 30, 2006 was 3.8%.

Term loan of the Company’s Dutch subsidiary, collateralized by property, plant and equipment of the
subsidiary. Principal and interest paid quarterly with a fixed interest rate of 5.4% through October 2014,
Term loan of the Company’s Australian subsidiary. collateralized by a mortgage over the subsidiary’s
assets. Interest rates as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005 were 8.2%. Interest rate is
adjusted quarlerly and limited to a minimum rate of 7.7% and & maximum rate of 9.0% through April
2007. interest and principal payments are madc quarterly.

Term loan of the Company’s U.K. subsidiary, collateralized by property, plant and equipment of the
subsidiary. Principal and interest paid monthly with a fixed interest rate of 6.7% through March 2010,

Term loan of the Company’s Dutch subsidiary, collateralized by property, plant and equipment of the
subsidiary. Principal and interest paid monthly with a fixed interest rate of 5.0% through January 2010.

Term loan of ene of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries, collateralized by certain machinery and equipment
of'the subsidiary. Principal and interest paid monthly with a variable interest rate through Junc 2012,
Interest rates as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005 were 7.3% and 5.9%, respectively.

Term loans of the Company’s Italian subsidiary collateralized by certain property, plant and equipment
of the subsidiary. Intercst rate as of September 30, 2005 was 5.9%.

10 3/8% Series B Senior Notes

Various others loans and capital leases collateralized by mortgages on certain land and buildings and
other assets of the Company. As of September 30, 2006, intcrest rates range between 3.0% and 10.25%
with maturity dates between Octaber 2006 and February 2027. The interest and principal payments are
made monthly, quarterly or seimi-annually.

Total
Less current maturities of long-term debt

Long-term debt less current maturities

September 30,
2006

September 30,
2005

(Dollars in Thousands)

$6,222 s -
4,146 4,338
3,274 -
2,008 2,185
1,903 -
1,681 1,68%
1,574 2377
1,24 1,460
880 1,062
321 964

- 4,155

- 3,000

2,445 3,421
26,255 24 650
4,696 5,657
$21,559 $18.993

During fiscal year 2006, the Company closed on numerous refinancings in order to increase the Company’s liquidity
and lower the Company’s cost of debt. In total, the Company oblained new term toans of $11.9 million within the Company’s
U.S. and European subsidiaries. The Company repaid $11.0 million of long-term debt, including the redemption of the

remaining $3.0 million of the Company’s 10 3/8% Series B Senior Notes at par value.

As of September 30, 2006, the Company’s Australian subsidiary was in violation of a financial debt covenant related
to $1.6 million of term debt and $3.4 million of short-term borrowings under credit facilities. The Company has received a
letter of waiver from National Australia Bank Limited in relation to the viotation of this debt covenant and an extension on the
maturity of the facility to April 2007. These debt amounts are classitied as current liabilities in the Company’s Consolidated

Balance Sheet.
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The Company’s total carrying amount of assets pledged as collateral on its long term loans and credit arrangements is
approximately $134,2 million, comprised mainly of certain property, plant and equipment, accounts receivable and inventory.

The Company’s foreign debt obligations contain various financial covenants and restrictions. Approximately 36% of
the Company’s net assets are restricted from being distributed to the parent Company without approval from certain foreign

lenders.

Aggregate maturities of the Company’s debt including capital lease obligations are as follows:

Years Ended

September 30, Amounts
(Dollars in thousands)
2007 $4.696
2008 3,152
2009 3,442
2010 2,336
2011 1,442
Thereafter 11,187

Note 10 - Credit Arrangements

The Company maintains several lines of credit. Total credit availability net of outstanding borrowings, letters of
credit and applicable foreign currency contracts totaled $41.1 million and $34.5 million at September 30, 2006 and September
30, 2005, respectively. The tacilities are collateralized by certain assets of the Company. Borrowings under these agreemeits
totaled $18.0 million and $10.0 million at September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005, respectively.

There was $0.8 mitlion and $1.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Company’s domestic credit facility with
Wachovia Bank as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005, respectively. The amount of available borrowings under the
Company’s domestic credit facility with Wachovia Bank, National Association (*“Wachovia Bank™) was $20.8 million and $19.7
million based on the credit facility limits, current levels of accounts receivables, inventory, outstanding letters of credit and
borrowings as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005, respectively.

The Company has various foreign credit facilities in eight foreign countries. The available credit under these facilities
varies based on the levels of accounts receivable within the foreign subsidiary, or is a fixed amount. The foreign credit facilities
are collateralized by assets owned by the foreign subsidiaries and also carry various financial covenants. There were $17.2 million
and $9.0 million of outstanding borrowings under these foreign credit facilities as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005,
respectively. The aggregate amount of available borrowings under the foreign credit facilities was $20.3 million (of which $1.0
million relates to the Company’s Australian subsidiary, which obtained a waiver from National Australia Bank Limited regarding a
violation of a financial covenant contained in the governing loan agreement) and $14.8 million based on the credit facility limits,
current levels of accounts receivables, outstanding letters of credit and borrowings as of September 30, 2006 and September 30,
2005, respectively,

The weighted average interest rate charged on short-term borrowings under the Company’s various credit facilities at
September 30, 2006 and 2005 was 6.0% and 6.7%, respectively.

On October 27, 2006, the Company entered into a five-year Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”™) with KeyBank
National Association and Wells Fargo Bank National Association (collectively referred to herein as “KeyBank™), establishing a
$45.0 million domestic credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) and terminated its existing $25.0 million senior credit facility with
Wachovia Bank, National Association (“Wachovia Bank™). The borrowing capacity available to the Company under the KeyBank
Credit Facility consists of a five-year $15.0 million term loan and a five-year $30.0 million revolving credit facility. The KeyBank
Credit Facility was utilized to replace commitments and outstanding borrowings under the Company’s $25.0 million credit facility
with Wachovia Bank. Proceeds of the KeyBank Credit Facility are being or may be used for working capital and for general
corporate purposes, and have been used to fund repurchases of the Company’s Preferred Stock. The $45.0 million KeyBank
Credit Facility contains a variable interest rate equal to either (at the Company’s option depending on borrowing levels) zero
percent (0%} or one quarter percent (4%) per annum in excess of the prime rate or one and one quarter percent (1%%), one and
one half percent (14%) or two percent {2%) per annum in excess of the adjusted Eurodollar rate, and is based upon the Company’s
leverage ratio, as defined in the Credit Agreement. The borrowing capacity varies based upon the levels of domestic cash,
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receivables and inventory. Under the new KeyBank Credit Facility, the amount of available borrowings based on the Credit
Facility limits, outstanding letters of credit and borrowings as of November 30, 2006 was approximately $25.6 million, including
the $15.0 million term loan the Company has not drawn down as of November 30, 2006.

The Credit Agreement establishing the new KeyBank Credit Facility contains financial covenants including minimum
tangible net worth, leverage ratio, fixed charge coverage ratio, and a required level of profitability. In addition, the Credit
Agreement contains a number of limitations on the ability ol the Company and its restricted U.S. subsidiaries to (i} incur additional
indebledness, (ii) pay dividends or redecm any Commen Stock, (iii) incur liens or other encumbrances cn their assets, (iv) enter
into transactions with affiliates, (v) merge with or into any other entity or {vi) sell any of their assets,

In addition, any “change of control” of the Company or its restricted U.S. subsidiaries will constitute a defauit under the
Credit Agreement. “Change of Control,” as defined in the Credit Agreement, is summarized as follows: (i) the acquisition of, or,
ifearlier, the sharcholder or director approval of the acquisition of, ownership or voting control, directly or indirectly, beneficially
or of record, by any person, entity, or group (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 of the SEC under the 1934 Act, as then in effect),
of shares representing more than 50% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by the issued and outstanding Common
Stock of the Company; (ii) the occupation of a majority of the seats (other than vacant seats) on the board of directors of the
Company by individuals who were neither (A) nominated by the Company’s board of directors nor (B) appointed by directors so
nominated; (iii) the occurrence of a change in control, or other similar provision, under or with respect o any “Material
[ndebtedness Agreement” (as defined in the Credit Agreement); or {iv) the failure of the Company to own directly or indirectly, all
of the outstanding equity interests of the Company’s Bayshore Industrial L.P. and [CO Polymers North America, Inc. subsidiaries.

Note 11 — Earnings {Loss) Per Share (“EPS™)
The Company presents both basic and diluted EPS amounts. Basic EPS is computed by dividing income available to
common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS assumes

the conversion of all dilutive securities.

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are presentcd
below:

Years Ended September 30,

2005 2004
2006 (restated) (restated)
Basic income per share:
Income tfrom continuing operations, as restated $.494 £.11 5.07
Loss trom discontinued operations (.06) (.02) (14)
Basic net income (loss) per cominon share, as restated $.38 $.09 $(.08)
Diluted income per share:
Income from continuing operations, as restated $.43 5.1 £.07
Loss from discontinued operations. as restated (.06) (.02) (.14)
Diluted net income (loss) per commeon share, as restated 3.37 $.09 $(.08)

See Note 2 “Restatement of Previously Reported Earnings per Share™ for discussion of the restatement of previously
reported carnings per share for fiscal years 2005 and 2004,

The difference between basic and diluted weighted-average common shares results from the assumed exercise of
outstanding stock options calculated using the treasury stock method. The following presents the number of incremental
weighted-average shares used in computing diluted per share amounts:
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Years Ended September 30,

2005 2004
Weighted-average shares outstanding: 2006 (restated) (restated)
Basic 25,680,000 25,442 000 25,276,000
Incremental shares from stock options 575,000 374,000 53,000
Diluted, as restated 26,255,000 25,816,000 25,329,000

The total amount of anti-dilutive securities for the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 were 5,080,600,
4,714,600 and 5,362,600 shares, respectively.

The following presents the computation of adjusted net income {loss) used in computing earnings per share:

Years Ended September 30,

2005 2004
2006 (restated) (restated)
Net income $12,004 £4,505 $257
Less undeclared and unpaid preferred stock
dividends, as restated (2,176) (2,176) (2,176)
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock, as ‘
restated $9,828 $2,329 3(1.919)

Note — 12 Stockholders’ Equity

During November 1993, the Company completed its initial offering of the $6.75 Convertible Exchangeable Preferred
Stock (the *“Preferred Stock”). The shares of Preferred Stock are evidenced by Depositary Shares, each representing 1/4 ofa
share of Preferred Stock. A total of 1,290,000 Depositary Shares were sold at a price of $25 per share. Each share of
Preferred Stock is convertible into 10.96 shares of the Company’s Common Stock (equivalent to 2.74 shares of Common Stock
per Depositary Share) at a conversion price 0of $9.1235 per common share subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain
events. The Board of Directors approved the recording of the Preferred Stock offering by allocating $.01 per Depositary Share
to Preferred Stock and the remainder to Additional Paid-In Capital. Preferred Stock dividends of $1.6875 per Depositary
Share were paid quarterly through December 31, 2002. Quarterly dividends (in an aggregate amount of $544,000 per quarter
prior to the reduction in outstanding shares of the Preferred Stock following the recent repurchases described herein) have not
been paid or declared on the Preferred Stock since January 1, 2003, and dividends in arrears through September 30, 2006
aggregated $8.2 million, or $6.33 per Depositary Share. Dividends on Preferred Stock are cumulative and missed dividends
accrue to the liquidation preference of the Preferred Stock. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the holders of the Preferred
Stock elected two additional directors to the Company’s Board of Directors because the Company had not declared a dividend on
the Preferred Stock for six consecutive quarters. Any undeclared or unpaid Preferred Stock dividends will need to be declared
and paid before the Company can pay a dividend on the Company’s Common Stock.

No cash dividends were paid during each fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, on the
Company’s Preferred Stock. Cumulative liquidating dividends on the Company’s Preferred Stock paid out of Additional Paid-
in Capital through September 30, 2006 totaled $7.7 million. Cumulative dividends on the Company’s Preferred Stock paid out
of accumulated deficit totaled $12.1 million through September 30, 2606.

There were no dividends paid on the Company’s Common Stock during fiscal years ended September 30, 2008, 2005
and 2004, Cumulative liquidating dividends on the Company’s Common Stock paid out of Additional Paid-in Capital through
September 30, 2006 totaled $5.7 million. Cumulative dividends on the Company’s Commen Stock paid out of accumulated
deficit totaled $7.8 million through September 30, 2006.

On October 3, 2006, the holders of approximately 80.9% of the voting power of the Preferred Stock proposed and
approved amendments to the Company’s Statement of Designations for its Preferred Stock, which became effective November 13,
2006. The amendments authorize the Company to repurchase shares of Preferred Stock while dividends on shares of Preferred
Stock are in arrears. The amendments also terminate the right of holders of Preferred Stock to elect up to two directors while
dividends payable to holders of Preferred Stock are in arrears, when there are fewer than 80,000 shares of Preferred Stock
outstanding (or 320,000 Depositary Shares). Through December 11, 2006, the Company repurchased 273,538 shares of Preferred

F-19




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Stock (represented by 1,094,153 Depositary Shares), or 84.8% of the authorized and outstanding Preferred Stock for $26.00 per
Depositary Share, for total consideration of $28.4 million. The dividends that were in arrears on these 1,094,153 Depositary
Shares were extinguished by the repurchase. Therefore, dividends in arrears as of December 11, 2006 aggregate only $1.2 million
rather than the $8.2 million in arrears as of September 30, 2006. This repurchase also leaves fewer than 80,000 shares of Preferred
Stock (represented by fewer than 320,000 Depositary Shares) outstanding, and thus, terminated the right of the holders of the
Preferred Stock to elect special directors. Except as described in the preceding sentences, the referenced amendments to the
Statement of Designations for the Preferred Stock do not affect the rights of the holders of Preferred Stock or the Common Stock.
The number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock and Common Stock are not affected by the foregoing; however, the Company
plans to retire the Preferred Stock that has been repurchased and that may be repurchased in future transactions.

Note 13 - Stock Option Plans

The Company has five active stock option plans, one for non-employee directors and four for employees, as described
below.

The Company’s Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors - The purpose of the Third Amended and Restated 1993
Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the “Director Plan”™) is to provide an additional incentive to attract and retain
qualified and competent directors through the encouragement of stock ownership in the Company by such persons. Under the
Director Plan each non-employee director of the Company is automatically granted (i) options (“Options™) to purchase 5,000
shares of the Company’s Common Stock (“Shares™) on the date when he or she becomes a director, and (ii) Options to purchase an
additional 5,000 Shares on the first business day after the date of each Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company (such
Options autornatically granted as described in the preceding sentence being referred to herein as “Annual Director Options™). At
the Company’s 2006 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, the Company’s Shareholders approved an amendment to the Director Plan,
effective as of November 18, 20035, allowing for discretionary Option grants to non-employee directors (““Discretionary Director
Options™), All Options granted under the Director Plan are issued at an exercise price per share equal to 100% of the “fair market
value™ of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of grant, defined as the closing sales price of the Shares on NASDAQ on the
business day immediately preceding the day of grant. Furthermore, no Options granted under the Director Plan are Incentive
Stock Options as defined in Section 422(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Annual Director Options vest six meonths and one
day after the date of grant, and the unexercised portion of any Annual Director Options automatically terminates on the carliest of
(1) thirty days after the optionee ceases to be a director for any reason other than as a result of death of the optionee; (ii) one year
atter the date an optionee ceases to be a director by reason of death of the optionee, or six months after the optionee’s death if that
occurs during the thirty day period described in (i); or (iii) on the tenth anniversary of the date of grant of the option.
Discretionary Director Options permitted under the Director Plan may have alternative vesting schedules and termination
schedules, and are not limited in terms of the number of Options that may be granted to a particular non-employee director in a
given time frame. The maximum number of Shares that may be issued pursuant to Options granted under the Director Plan is
410,000. In the event that a former non-employee director’s Options terminate because the director failed to exercise them within
the required time frame, that former non-employee director’s Options will become available for re-grant under the Director Plan.
New shares of Commaon Stock are issued upon exercise of Stock Options. As of September 30, 2006, Options to purchase 150,000
Shares, with a weighted average exercise price of $2.65 per share, were exercisable. Options to purchase 200,000 shares with a
weighted average price of $2.71 per share were outstanding under the terms of the Director Plan. No new Options may be granted
under the Director Plan after January 8, 2009.

The Company's Employee Stock Option Plans - The common purpose of the Company’s four active employee stock
optien plans (collectively “Employee Plans”™), with inception dates in 1994, 1995, 1996, and 1998 respectively, is to promote the
interests of the Company and its shareholders by providing a means for employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to acquire a
proprietary interest in the Company, thereby strengthening the Company’s ability to attract capable management personnel and
provide inducement for such employees to remain employed by the Company and its subsidiaries and to perform at their maximum
levels. The price at which each Share may be purchased pursuant to an Incentive Stock Option (as defined in Section 422(b) of the
Internal Revenue Code) granted under the 1994, 1995 and 1996 Employee Plans, and pursuant to any Option granted under the
1998 Employee Plan, cannot be less than the fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of grant, defined as
the closing sales price of the Shares on NASDAQ on the date of grant. Options issued under any of the Employee Plans may vest
immediately, or may vest over a specified employment period after the date of grant, and may have a term of up to 10 years after
the grant date during which they can be exercised, at the discretion of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors,
which has been designated to administer the Employee Plans. New shares of Common Stock are issued upon exercise of Stock
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Options. Options granted under the Employee Plans may be Incentive Stock Options or nonqualified stock options (meaning any
Option granted under the Plan which is not an Incentive Stock Option). In the event that the Company merges inte, consolidates
with, or sells or transfers substantially ali of its assets to another corporation and provision is not made pursuant to the terms of
such transaction for the assumption by the surviving, resulting, or acquiring corporation of outstanding options under the
Employee Plans, or for the substitution of new Options therefore, according to the 1995, 1996 and 1998 Employee Plans as written
as of November 15, 2005 and Options granted as of that date, all outstanding Options subject to a vesting schedule shall become
fully (100%) vested prior to the effective date of such transaction. Most Options granted under the Employee Plans after
November 15, 2005 provide for vesting as described in the preceding sentence; however, on November 16, 20035, the 1998
Employee Plan was amended to provide that, if specified in the Option Agreement pursuant to which Options are granted to an
employee, it may be agreed that unvested Options do not automatically vest in the circumstances described in the previous
sentence.  Asof September 30, 2006, options to purchase 1,135,000 Shares, with a weighted average exercise price of $2.24 per
Share, were exercisable and options to purchase 1,921,000 Shares, with a weighted average exercise price of $2.71 per Share, were
outstanding under the terms of the Plans. No new options may be granted under the 1994, 1995 or 1996 Plans. No new options
may be granted under the 1998 Plan after January 12, 2008.

There were 266,000, 793,000 and 643,000 Shares available for grant (representing the sum of Options available for
grani under the Director Plan and the four Employee Plans) at September 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2006, SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, became effective for the Company.
This standard requires, among other things, a Company to expense share-based payment transactions using the grant-date fair
value based method. The Company prospectively adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 on October 1,
2002, thus the adoption of the revised standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements, Total stock
option compensation expense included in selling, general and administrative expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations
was $0.9 million, $0.7 million and $0.7 million for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
total income tax benefit {provision) recognized related to stock option activity in the consolidated statement of operations was $0.2
million, $(0.1) million and $0.2 miliion for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

All Options granted during the fiscal year were granted at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Shares on
the Date of Grant (as defined in the applicable Option plan). The Company uses the Black-Scholes pricing model to calculate the
grant - date fair value of its Options for accounting purposes. The following table presents the assumptions used in valuing
Options granted during fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004,

Fiscal Year Ended

September 30,
2006 2005 2004

Weighted average fair value $1.84 $1.66 $1.45
Assumptions used:

Expected life of stock options 5.2 years 5.4 years 5.0 years

Expected dividend yield over life of stock options 0% 0% 0%

Expected stock price volatility 57% 69% 78%

Risk-free interest rate 4.37% 3.67% 3.29%

The following is a summary of stock option activity for the year ended September 30, 2006:

Weighted Weighted
Option Average Average Aggregate
Shares Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
(000's) Price Contractual Term Value
Owstanding at beginning of year 1,554 $2.38
Granted 945 3.41
Exercised (161) 2.62
Forfeited/cancelled {217} 343
Qutstanding at end of year 2,121 $2.71 6 years $8.3 million
Options exercisable at year end 1,285 $2.29 6 years $£5.6 million
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The total intrinsic value of Options exercised during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
$0.4 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, and the total cash received was $0.4 million, $0.2 million and $0.1
million, respectively.

During fiscal year 2000, the Company granted Options to purchase 212,260 shares of the Company’s Commaon Stock
(“Shares™) to the Company’'s Prestdents of ICO Polymers North America, [CO Europe, ICO Courtenay—Australasia and Bayshore
Industrial. These Options vest over a four—year period, with exercise prices ranging from $2.40 to $5.40 per Share. In the first
quarter of fiscal year 2006, the Company granted Options to purchase 360,000 Shares to A. John Knapp, Jr., the Company’s
President and Chief Executive Officer. The Options granted to Mr. Knapp vest over fiscal years 2006 and 2007, and 180,000 of
the referenced Options contain certain performance conditions that must be met in order for the Options to vest. Furthermore, in
the first quarter of fiscal year 2006 the Company granted Options to purchase 60,000 Shares to the Chairman of the Company’s
Board of Directors, Gregory T. Barmore. Options granted to Mr. Barmore will vest over fiscal years 2006 and 2007 and 30,000 of
those Options contain certain performance conditions that must be met in order for the Options to vest.

As of September 30, 2006, there were 210,000 Options outstanding that contained performance conditions, all of which
were nonvested. These options vest based on the financial performance of the Company in fiscal year 2006 and fiscat year 2007.
The performance conditions related to fiscal year 2006 were achieved, and on December 15, 2006, 105,000 of the 210,000
performance-based Options will vest. The weighted average exercise price of the performance-based Options is $2.40, and the
weighted average remaining contractual term of the referenced Options is 6 years as of September 30, 2006. The weighted
average grant date fair value of the referenced performance-based Options was $1.34. Aggregate intrinsic value of the outstanding
Options with performance conditions as of September 30, 2006 is $0.9 million.

On September 2, 2005, W. Robert Parkey, Jr. resigned from his position as the President and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and from the Board of Directors, effective as of September 30, 2005. In connection with his resignation, Mr, Parkey
entered into an Employment, Consulting and Separation Agreement and Release (“Separation Agreement”). As part of the
Separation Agreement, the Company accelerated vesting on certain outstanding stock options and Mr. Parkey forfeited certain
outstanding stock options. In addition, the Company modified the expiration date of certain outstanding stock options. As a result
of these modifications, the Company recognized a reduction in stock option compensation expense of $0.1 million in September
2005. In connection with the resignation, the Company recognized $0.2 million of severance expense in fiscal 2005.

A summary of the status of the Company’s nonvested Options as of September 30, 2006 and changes during the twelve
months ended September 30, 2006, is presented below:

Weighted-Average

Shares Grant-Date Weighted-Average
Nonvested Stock Options (000°s) Fair Value Exercise Price
Nonvested at October 1, 2005 330 $1.44 $2.24
Granted 829 1.90 3.55
Vested (313) 1.42 2.49
Forfeiied (10 [.79 2.68
Nonvested at September 30, 2006 836 $1.87 $3.45

As of September 30, 2006, the total stock option compensation expense not yet recognized in the Consolidated Statement
of Operations related to the 836,000 of nonvested stock options was $0.9 million which will be recognized over a weighted-
average period of approximately 2.3 years.
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Note 14 - Income Taxes

The amounts of income (loss) before income taxes attributable to domestic and foreign continuing operations are as
follows:

Years Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)
Domestic $12,269 $742 $5(9.801)
Foreign 7,030 4,478 12,319
$19,299 $5,220 $2,518

The expense (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following;

Years Ended September 30,
2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in Thousands)

Current:
Federal $3,941 $511 $(2,870)
State 3 - 197
Foreign 1,942 1,766 2,019
5914 2,277 {654)
Deferred:
Federal 83 (121) {(670)
State 6 (316) 109
Foreign (167) {1,622} (155)
(78) (2,059) (716)
Total:
Federal 4,024 390 (3.540)
State 37 (316) 306
Foreign 1,775 144 1,864
35,836 $218 $(1,370)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense {benefit), for continuing operations, at the federal statutory tax rate of 35%
to the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows:

Years Ended September 39,

2006 2005 2004
{Dollars in Thousands)
Tax expense at statutory rate $6,755 $1.827 $881
Change in the deferred tax assets valuation allowance (842) {1,054) (2,100)
Foreign tax rate differential 156 (381 (332)
Sub part F income - 341 -
Adjustment to tax contingency (340) (400) —
State taxes, net of federal benefit 26 317 237
Other, net 81 202 (56)
Income tax provision (benefit) $5.836 $218 $(1,370)
Effective income tax rate 30.2% 4.1% {54.4)%
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities) result from the cumulative effect of temporary differences in the recognition of
expenses (revenues) between tax returns and financial statements. The significant components of the balances are as follows:

September 30,
2006 2005
(Dollars in Thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carry-forwards $1,411 $1,756
Depreciation 1,210 1,394
Compensation Accruals 1,117 678
Other accruals 1,029 614
Other Intangibles 718 929
Goodwill (Foreign) 449 830
Tax Credit Carry forward 428 615
Inventory 364 in
Bad Debt Allowance 353 483
Insurance Accruals 194 255
Deferred Revenue - 827
Other 57 142
7,330 8,834

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and land (5,075) {3,209)
Other (218) {163)
(5,293) (5,372)
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets (2,273) (3,115
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $(236) 35347

The total net deferred tax asset at September 30, 2006 is comprised of $2.2 million of net current deferred tax assets
and $2.4 million of net non-current deferred tax liabilities. :

The net operating loss carry-forwards of the Company’s Brazilian and UK subsidiarics are $1.6 million and $1.4
million, respectively. These can be carried forward indefinitely. The Company’s ltalian subsidiary has a net operating loss
carry-forward of $1.4 million of which $0.7 million will expire in 2008 and $0.7 million will expire in 2610,

During fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company generated taxable income in certain European subsidiaries that
enabled the subsidiaries to utilize tax assets that were previously reserved of $0.8 million, $1.0 million and 32.1 million,
respectively. The Company currently has a valuation allowance of $2.3 million against the deferred tax assets of its [talian and
Brazilian subsidiaries. Part of the Ttalian deferred tax asset was utilized in 2006 due to estimated taxable income and resulted in a
reduction in the valuation allowance of $0.8 million. Despite the fact that the Italian subsidiary has current taxable income and is
projecting future taxabte income and the Company believes the deferred tax asset will ultimately be realized, the positive evidence

required to overcome cumulative historical operating losses was not sufficient to support recognition as of the end of fiscal year
2006.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”™) provides a tax deduction for qualified production activities. During
2006, the Company recorded a tax benefit of $111,000 from the application of these provisions to its production activities.

The Act also provides tax benefits with respect to the repatriation of foreign earnings. The Act provides for a special one-

time tax ratc of 5.25%. Accordingly, during 2006, the Company repatriated foreign earnings in the amount of $6.4 million from
two of its European subsidiaries. The impact on current tax expense for 2006 was $0.3 million.
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The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxes on foreign subsidiaries’ undistributed earntngs intended to be
permanently reinvested in forcign operations. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of additional 1ax that might be payable
should the earnings be remitted or deemed remitied or should the Company sell its stock in the subsidiaries. The Company has
unremitted carnings from foreign subsidiaries of approximately $7.9 million. The Company has determined that the undistributed
earnings of foreign subsidiaries, exclusive of those camnings that were repatriated under the Act, will be permanently reinvested.

Note 15 - Employee Benefit Plans

The Company maintains several defined contribution plans that cover domestic and foreign employees that meet certain
eligibility requirements related to age and period of service with the Company. The plan in which each employee is eligible to
participate depends upon the subsidiary for which the employee works. All plans have a salary deferral feature that cnables
employees to contribute up to a certain percentage of their carnings, subject to governmental regulations. Many of the foreign
plans require the Company to match employees’ contributions in cash. The Company’s domestic 401(k) plan has historically been
voluntarily matched, typically with ICQ Common Stock. For Company matching contributions in the Company’s 401(k) plan
made prior to calendar 2006, domestic employees’ interests and carnings related thereto vest over five years of service. The
Company’s matching contributions in the Company’s 401(k} plan made in calendar year 2006 will be mandatory and will vest
immediately. Foreign employees™ interests in Company matching contributions are generally vested immediately.

The Company maintains a defined benefit plan for employees of the Company’s Dutch operating subsidiary. Participants
contrtbute a portion of the cost associated with the benefit plan. The plan provides retirement benefits at the normal retirement age
of 65, This plan is insured by a participating annuity contract with Aegon Levensverzekering N.V. ("Aegon™), located in The
Hague, The Netherlands. The participating annuity contract guarantees the funding of the Company’s future pension obligations
tor its defined benefit pension plan. In accordance with the contract, Aegon will pay all future obligations under the provisions of
this plan, while the Company pays annual insurance premiums. Payment of the insurance premiums by the Company constitutes an
unconditional and irrevocable transter of the related pension obligation from the Company to Aegon. Aegon has a Standard and
Poor’s financial strength rating of AA. The premiums paid for the participating annuity contracts of $0.6 million, $0.3 million and
$0.6 million for fiscal ycars cnded September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, are included in pension expense.

The Company alse maintains several termination plans, usually mandated by law, within certain of its foreign subsidiaries
that provide a one time payment if a covered employee is terminated.

The detined contribution plan expense for the years ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1.0 million for cach
fiscal year. The defined benefit plan pension expense for the years ended September 30, 2006, 20035 and 2004 was $0.7 million,
$0.7 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has cntered into operating leases related to buildings, office space, machinery and equipment and office
equipment that expire at various dates. Rental expense was approximately $2.1 million in 2006, $2.0 millien in 2005, and §2.2
million in 2004 associated with these leases. Future minimum rental payments as of September 30, 2006 are due as follows:

2007 $1.7 million
2008 1.1 million
2009 0.7 million
2010 0.5 million
2011 0.3 million
Thereafter -

The Company has letters of credit outstanding in the United States of approximately $2.1 million and $1.6 million as of
September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2005, respectively, and foreign letters of credit outstanding of $2.6 million and $4.5
million as of September 30, 2006 and September 30, 2003, respectively.
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Varco Indemnification Claims. Between May 2003 and March 2004, approximately 30 claims for contractual indemnity
were asserted against the Company by Varco International, Inc. (n/k/a National Oilwell Varco, Inc., hereinafter “NOV™) in
connection with the September 2002 sale of substantially all of the Company's oilfield services ("Oilfield Services") business to
NOV. NOV’s indemnity demands were based on its contention that the Company breached a number of representations and
warranties in the purchase agreement dated July 2, 2002 pursuant to which the Company sold the Oilfield Services business to
NOV (the “Purchase Agreement”) and that certain expenses or damages that NOV has incurred or may incur in the future
constitute "excluded liabilities" as defined in the Purchase Agreement. NOV alleged that the expected loss range for its indemnity
claims was between $16.4 million and $22.0 million. A portion of those indemnity demands (representing aggregate losses of
approximately $0.4 million) related to product liability claims. The balance of the indemnity demands related to alleged historieal
contamination or alleged non-compliance with environmental rules at approximately 26 former Company properties located in
both the United States and Canada.

The Company’s contractual indemnification obligation to NOV was subject to certain limitations, including the obligation
of NOV to bear 50% of any losses relating to environmental matiters in excess of the $1.0 million threshold, up to a maximum
aggregate loss borne by NOV in respect of such environmental matters of $4.0 million (in addition to the §1.0 million threshold).
At the time of the sale in September 2002, the Company had placed $5.0 million of the sale proceeds in escrow to be used to pay
for indemnification obligations, should they arise. The $5.0 million in proceeds was included in the gain on the sale of the Oilfield
Services business recognized in fiscal year 2002. In the third quarter of fiscal 2004 the Company deemed the $5.0 million
receivable of the escrowed sales proceeds to be a doubtful collection, due to the continued inability of the parties to reach an
agrecment regarding the size of NOV’s indemnifiable loss. The $5.0 million reserve, net of income taxes, was recorded in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations as a component of loss from discontinued operations.

On November 21, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement settling all of the pending indemnity claims asserted by
NOV. In exchange for a complete release of claims and indemnity agreement, the Company agreed to a $7.5 million payment
consisting of: a cash payment of approximately $1.1 million; release to NOV of the approximately $5.4 million currently held in
escrow (consisting of the $5.0 miliion of sales proceeds placed in escrow for potential indemmnity obligations plus interest); and a
$1.0 million note payable in one year. As a result of the settlement, the Company recognized a pre-tax charge through
discontinued operations of $2.1 million ($1.4 million after taxes) during its fiscal fourth quarter ended September 30, 2006.
Pursuant o the settlement agreement, the Company is absolved of and shall be indemnified for NOV’s indemnity claims
previously asserted, as well as specified future environmental liabilities relating to the properties transferred to NOV and its
affiliates: however, except as set forth in the settlement agreement, the Company continues to be responsible for “excluded
ltabilities™ as defined in the Purchase Agreement.

Thibodaux Litigation. Since September 2004, the Company has been a defendant in litigation pending in District Court
in the Parish of Orleans, Louisiana (the “Thibodaux Lawsuit”) filed by C.M. Thibodaux Company (*Thibodaux™). Other
defendants in the case include Intracoastal Tubular Services, Inc. (“ITCO™), thirty different oil companies (the “0il Company
Defendants™), several insurance companies and four trucking companies. Thibodaux, the owner of industrial property located in
Amelia, Louisiana that has historically been leased to tenants conducting oiifield services businesses, contends that the property
has been contaminated with naturally occurring radioactive material (“NORM™). NORM is found naturally occurring in the carth,
and when pipe is removed from the ground it is not uncommon for the corroded rust on the pipe to contain very small amounts of
NORM. The Company’s former Oilfield Services business leased a portion of the subject property from Thibodaux. Thibodaux
contends that the subject property was contaminated with NORM generated during the servicing of oilfield equipment by the
Company and other tenants, and further alleges that the QOil Company Defendants {customers of Thibodaux’s tenants) and trucking
companies (which delivered tubular goods and other oilfield equipment to the subject property) allowed or caused the uncontrolled
dispersal of NORM on Thibodaux’s property. Thibodaux seeks recovery from the Defendants for clean-up costs, diminution or
complete loss of property values, and other damages. Discovery in the Thibodaux Lawsuit is ongoing, and the Company intends
to assert a vigorous defense in this litigation. An adverse judgment against the Company in the lawsuit could have a material
adverse etfect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations and/or cash flows.

Environmenial Remediation. The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as
amended (“CERCLA™), also known as “Superfund,” and comparable state laws impose liability without regard to fault or the
legality of the original conduct on certain classes of persons who are considered to be responsible for the refease of a
“hazardous substance” into the environment. These persons include the owner or operator of the disposal site or the site where
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the retease occurred, and companies that disposed or arranged for the disposal of the hazardous substances at the site where the
release occurred. Under CERCLA, such persons may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the
hazardous substances that have been released into the environment, for damages to natural resources, and for the costs of
certain health studies, and it is not uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third parties to file claims for personal
injury and property damage allegedly caused by the release of hazardous substances into the environment. The Company,
through acquisitions that it has made, is identified as one of many potentially responsible parties (“PRPs”) under CERCLA in
four claims relating to the following sites: (i) the French Limited site northeast of Houston, Texas; (i1) the Sheridan Disposal
Services site near Hempstead, Texas; (iii) the Combe Fill South Landfill site in Morris County, New Jersey; and (iv) the
Malone Service Company {MSC) Superfund site in Texas City, Texas.

Active remediation of the French Limited site was concluded in 1996, Ifthe Company is required to contribute to the
costs of additional remediation at that site, it is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company. With regard 1o
the three remaining Superfund sites, the Company believes it remains responsible for only de minimus levels of wastes
contributed to those sites, and that there are numerous other PRPs identified at each of these sites that contributed significantly
larger volumes of wastes to the sites. The Company expects that its share of any allocated liability for cleanup ol the Sheridan
Disposal Services site, and the Combe Fill South Landfill site will not be significant, and based on the Company’s current
understanding of the remedial status of each of these sites, together with its relative position in comparison to the many other
PRPs at those sites, the Company does not expect its future environmental liability with respect to those sites to have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operation, and/or cash flows. The Company has been
involved in settlement discussions relating to the MSC site, and does not expect its liability with respect to this site 10 have a
matcrial adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition.

Tank Failure Claim. In September 2003, the Company’s U.K. subsidiary was served by one of its former customers in a
lawsuit filed in the High Court of Justice, Queen's Bench Division, Salford Court Registry Division in the U.K. The customer
claims that above-ground oil storage tanks that it manufactured with colored resin purchased from the Company between 1997 and
2001 have failed or are expected to fail, and that such failure is the result of the unsatisfactory quality and/or unfitness for purpose
of the Company's resin. In pleadings filed with the Court the customer seeks recovery from the Company for the customer's costs
incurred in replacing failed tanks, lost profits, pre-judgment interest, legal expenses, and other unspecified damages. The customer
is seeking recovery for 1,022 failed tanks as of November 30, 2005, and the customer’s forensic accountants contend that the
customer’s replacement costs and other losses incurred to date by the customer relating to the failed tanks (excluding interest and
legal expenses) are approximately $0.8 million. The Company denies that it is liable to the customer, and attributes the alleged
defects to tank design flaws, inconsistent and uncontrolled manufacturing processes and procedures, insufficient recordkeeping,
and failure to perform routine quality control testing, none of which are the responsibility of the Company. Furthermore, the
Company’s forensic accountants believe that the customer’s forensic accountants’ estimate of the customer’s costs associated with
failed tanks incurred to date is significantly inflated. It is difficult to estimate the number of additional tanks manufactured with
the resin at issue that might prematurely fail and for which the customer may seek recovery, based in part on the customer's failure
to produce production records and proper evidence of material traceability, and the wide variation in failure rates by tank model as
reported by the customer. The failure patterns (including the customer's acknowledgement that certain tank models have
extremely high faiture rates, while other models manufactured during the same time frame with the same resin have negligible
failure rates) strongly support the Company's opinion that the failures are attributed to design defects.

In the event that the Company's colored resin is found to have caused or contributed to the failures, the Compuny shall be
entitled to indemnity for fifty percent (50%) of its damages from the supplier of the base resin used by the Company to
manufacture the colored resin. The Company will also be entitled to partial indemnity from its insurance carriers in the event that
itis found to have any liability in this case. Both of the Company’s insurers have reimbursed a portion of the Company’s defense
costs, and additional defense cost reimbursements are forthcoming, The case has been scheduled for trial commencing in February
2007. The Company believes that the customer's claims are without merit, and will continue to vigorously defend its position in
this case. However, if an adverse judgment is obtained against the Company which is ultimately determined not to be covered by
insurance it may have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations and/or cash flows,

Other Legal Proceedings. The Company is also named as a defendant in certain other lawsuits arising in the ordinary

course of business. The outcome of these lawsuits cannot be predicted with certainty, but the Company does not believe they
will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.
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Note 17 - Discontinued Operations

On September 6, 2002, the Company completed the sale of substantially all of its Oilfield Services business to NOV. On
July 31, 2003, the Company sold its remaining Qilfield Services business to Permian Enterprises, Ltd. The Oilfield Services
results of operations are presented as discontinued operations, net of income taxes, in the Consolidated Statement of Operations,
Legal fees or other expenses incurred related to discontinued operations are expensed as incurred to discontinued operations.

Between May 2003 and March 2004, NOV asserted approximately 30 claims for contractual indemnity ranging from
$16.4 million to $22.0 million against the Company in connection with the September 2002 sale of substantially all of the
Company's Qilfield Services business. On November 21, 2006, the Company entered into an agreement settling all of the pending
indemnity claims asserted by NOV for $7.5 million in exchange for a complete release of claims and indemnity agreement. The
$7.5 million payment consisted of> a cash payment of approximately $1.1 million; release to NOV of the approximately $5.4
million currently held in escrow; and a $1.0 million note payable in one year. The funds in escrow were set aside on September 6,
2002, and consist of $5.0 million of the sale proceeds plus interest. The escrowed funds were deemed to be a doubtful collection
and a reserve recorded against the $5.0 million during fiscal year 2004 through discontinued operations. As a result of the
settlement, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge through discontinued operations of $2.1 million ($1.4 miilion after taxes)
during its fiscal fourth quarter ended September 30, 2006, See Note 16 — “Commitments and Contingencies” for further
discussion of the NOV settlement. The loss from discontinued operations during fiscal year 2005 related to legal fees and other
expenses incurred by the Company associated with discontinued operations,

Loss on disposition of the Qilfield Services business was $1.4 million, $0 and $3.3 million for fiscal years 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively.

Note 18 - Supplemental Cash Flow Information

During fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company issued to employees $0.3 million, $0.2 million, and $0.1
million worth of Common Stock, respectively, in connection with the Company’s domestic 401(k) defined contribution plan.
At September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company had accrued $0.5 million, $0.3 million, and $0.3 million, respectively, in

connection with the Company’s domestic 401(k)} defined contribution plan. See Note 15 — “Employee Benefit Plans.”

As discussed in Note 17 — “Discontinued Operations,” in connection with the settlement agreement with NOV, the
Company and NOV agreed to a $1.0 million note payable due in November 2007 as part of the $7.5 million settlement.

Note 19 - Operations Information

The following table provides revenue by point of origin and long-lived assets by location as of and for years ended
September 30:

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Revenues:
Holland $45,550 $45,186 $31,845
ltaly 32,641 30,249 26,308
Other Foreign 108,301 107,504 102,314
Total Foreign 186,492 182,939 160,467
United States 137,839 113,667 97.058
$324,331 $296,606 $257.525
2006 2005

(Dollars in thousands)
Long-Lived Assets

Holland $7,682 $8,109
Other Foreign 21,618 22,939
Total Foreign 29,300 31,048
United States 30,781 27,561

$60,081 $58,609
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Foreign revenue is based on the country in which the legal subsidiary is domiciled. Long-lived asscts include net
property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other long-term assets {excluding long-term deferred tax assets).

Note 20 - Segment Information

The Company's management structure and reportable segments are organized into five business scgments defined as ICO
Polymers North America, ICO Brazil, Bayshore Industrial, ICO Europe and ICO Courtenay - Australasia. This organization is
consistent with the way information is reviewed and decisions are made by executive management.

ICO Polymers North America, ICO Brazil, ICO Europe and 1CO Courtenay - Australasia primarily produce competitively
priced engineered polymer powders for the rotational molding industry as well as other specialty markets for powdered polymers,
including masterbatch and concentrate producers, users of polymer-based metal coatings, and non-woven textile markets.

Additionally, these segments provide specialty size reduction services on a tolling basis (“tolling” refers to processing
customer owned material for a service fee). The Bayshore Industrial segment designs and produces proprietary concentrates,
masterbatches and specialty compounds, primarily for the plastic film indusiry. in North America and in sclected export markets.
The Company’s European segment includes operations in France, Holland, Italy, Sweden (closed during 2004) and UK. The
Company’s Australasia segment includes operations in Australia, Malaysia and New Zealand. The accounting policies of each

business segment are consistent with those described in the “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies™ in Note 1.

Revenue Impairment, Expenditures
From Inter- Operating Depreciation Restructuring for Additions
Fiscal Year Ended External Segment Income and and Gther to Long-Lived
September 30, 2006 Customers Revenues {Loss) Amortization Costs ™' Assets
{Dcllars in thousands)
ICO Eurape $129,372 $339 $6.021 £3.024 363 $880
Bayshore Industrial 93.005 22 14,843 1.659 - 3.675
ICO Courtenay-Australasia 47,819 - 2412 983 - 813
1CO Polymers North America 44,834 4,359 5.037 1,349 55 2,235
1CO Brazil 9.301 - (459 211 — 151
Total from Reportable
Segments 324331 4,720 27.854 7.226 18 7,754
Corporate - - (5,682) 160 - 326
Stock Option Expense - - (857) - - -
Total $324.331 $4.720 $21,315 $7.386 118 $3.080
Revenue Impairment, Expenditures
From Inter- Operating Depreciation Restructuring for Additions
Fiscal Year Ended External Segment Income and and Other to Long-Lived
September 30, 2005 Customers Revenues (L.0ss) Amortization Costs * Asscts
(DoHars in thousands)
1CO Europe $126.986 3499 $4.201 $3.,516 $378 $1.330
Bayshore Industrial 73.078 392 8.881 1650 - 572
1CO Courtenay-Australasia 47,670 - 2,910 Q08 - 1.020
1CO Polymers North America 40,589 2,284 77 1.264 110 2,046
ICO Brazil 8,283 - (951} 176 - 41
Tatal from Reporiable Segments 296,606 3,175 15.812 7.514 488 5,009
Corporate - - {6,934) 258 - 30
Stock Option Expense - — (673) — - -
Total $296,606 $3.175 38,205 $7.772 3488 $5.039
Revenue Depreciation Impairment, Expenditures
From I[nter- Operating and Restructuring for Additions
Fiscal Year Ended External Segment Income Amortizatio and Gther to Long-Lived
September 30, 2004 Customers Revenues (Lass) n Costs Assets
(Doltars in thousands)
1CO Europe $112.554 3421 $2.400 $3.680 $672 1,178
Bayshore Industrial 60.285 - 3,511 1.720 - 602
1CO Courtenay-Australasia 40,640 - 3.999 719 - [.760
ICO Polymers Notth America 36,773 2,057 1.444 §.345 100 827
1CO Brazil 7,273 - 118 139 - 108
Tota! from Reportable Segments 257,525 2478 13472 7.603 772 4475
Corporate - — (7.577) 393 82 250
Stock Option Expense - — (679) - - -
Total $257,525 $2,478 $3.216 $7.996 $854 $4.725
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As of Asof
September 30, September 30,
Total Assets 2006 (c) 2005 ()
(Dollars in thousands)
1CO Europe $81.330 $70,793
Bayshore Industrial 39421 31.534
1CO Courtenay-Australasia 31,859 31,945
ICO Polymers North America 23,702 22,527
1CO Brazil 4,412 4,909
Total from Reportable Segments 180,724 161,708
Other 17.237 2,547
Total $197,961 $164,255

{a) Impairment, restructuring and other costs arc included in operating income (loss).

(b) Consists of unallocated Corporate asscts.

(¢} Includes goodwill of $4.1 million and 54.3 million for [CO Courtenay — Australasia as of September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively and $4.5

mitlion for Bayshore Industriat as of September 30. 2006 and 2005.

A reconciliation of total reportable segment operating income to income from continuing operations before income

taxes is as follows:

Reportable segments operating income
Corporate and steck option expense
Consolidated aperating income
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Other
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
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Fiscal Years Ended
September 30,
2006 2005 2004
{Dollars in thousands)

$27.854 $15,812 $13,472
(6,539) (7,607) (8.256)
21,315 8.205 5216
(2,091) (2,836) (2,663)
75 (149) (35)
§19,229 $5,220 $2,518
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Note 21 - Selected Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following table presents selected financial information for each quarter in the fiscal years ended September 30,

2006 and September 30, 2003, respectively.

Revenues
Impairment, restructuring and other costs
Operating income

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net income
Basic income per share
Income from continuing operations, as restated
Loss from discontinued operations
Basic net income per common share, as restated
Diluted income per share
Income from continuing operations, as restated
Loss from discontinued operations
Diluted net income per common share, as restated

Basic weighted average shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding, as
restated

Earnings per commaon share as previously reported:

Basic income per share
Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Basic net income per common share
Diluted income per share
Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Diluted net income per common share

Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

Three Months Ended

December 31, March 31, June 30,
2005 20006 2006 September 30,
(restated) (restated) (restated) 2006
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
$75,113 §79.543 $82.444 S87,231
118 - — -
5,013 4,851 5919 5,532
3,095 2,982 4,111 3,275
(33) - (19} {1,407)
$3,062 $2.982 $4,092 $1,868
5.10 $.10 $.14 $.11
- - - (.05)
$.10 5.10 $.14 $.05
$.10 $.09 $.13 g.10
— — — (.05)
$.10 $.09 $.13 $.05
25,559.000 25,663.000 25,739,000 25.761.000
25,738,000 26,230,000 26,512,000 26,543,000
$.12 $.12 $.16
$.12 812 $.16
$.11 $.10 $.14
$.10 $.10 5.14
25,559,000 25,663,000 25,739,000
29,272,600 29,764,600 30,046,600
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Revenues
Impairment, restructuring and other costs
Operating income

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net income (loss)
Basic income (loss) per share
Income (loss) from continuing operations, as restated
Loss from discontinued operations
Basic net income (loss) per common share, as restated
Diluted income (loss) per share
Income (loss) from continuing operations, as restated
Loss from discontinued operations. as restated

Diluted net income (loss) per commaon share, as
restated

Basic weighted average shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding, as
restated

Earnings per common share as previously reported:

Basic income (loss) per share
Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Basic net income per common share
Diluted income (loss) per share
Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations

Diluted net income per common share

Basic weighted average shares outstanding
Diluted weighted average sharcs outstanding

Three Months Ended

December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
2004 2005 2005 2005
{restated) {restated) (restated) (restated)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

$71,430 $£78,135 $75.762 £71.,279
321 22 - 145

2,201 2,182 1,307 2,515
1.390 1,022 19 2,571
(177) {143} (63) (114)
$1,213 £879 $(44) $2.457
$.03 $.02 $(.02) $.08

0l (01 - -

$.03 $.01 $(.02) $.08

$.03 $.02 $(.02) S.08

{01 (ol - -

$.03 $.01 $(.02) $.07
25.387.000 25,436,000 25.455,000 25,490,000
25,744,000 25,920,000 25,750,000 25.850.000
$.06 $.04 $ - .10

(.01} (01 - .

$.05 $.03 3 - £.10

$.05 $.03 S - 5.09

(o1 - - -

$.04 $.03 S - $.08
25,387,000 25,436,000 25,455,000 25,490,000
20,278,600 29 454,600 29,284,600 29 384,600

The sum of the quarterly earnings per share may not equal the annual earnings per share because each quarter’s per
share is individually calculated using a different number of weighted average shares outstanding.

See Note 2 “Restatement of Previously Reported Earnings per Share™ for further discussion of the restatement of

previously reported earnings per share.
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ICO, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Condensed Balance Sheets

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Current deferred tax asset
Other current asscts

Total current assets

[nvestment in subsidiaries
Total assets

LIABILITIES, STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY AND

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Current portion of long-term debt
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portion
Delerred income taxes
Total liabilities

Stockholders™ equity:
Preferred Stock
Common Stock

Additional paid-in capital .
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying note to condensed financial statements.

September 30,
2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)
$6 kY3
1,772 2,080
20 -
1,798 2.096
96.397 78,632
$98,195 380,728
528 56
3,982 1,135
4.010 1,141
389 399
2,079 2,098
6,478 3,638
13 13
45,087 44.265
104,844 104.134
(154) (1,245)
(58,073) (70,077)
91,717 77.090
$98,195 $80,728
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1CO, Inc, (Parent Company Only)
Condensed Statement of Operations

Years Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Revenues 3 - 3 - 5 -
Cost of goods sold and services - - -
Stock option expense 857 673 679
Operating loss (857) (673) (679)
Equity in subsidiary earnings 16,168 5,017 (4,220)
Interest expense €1} (34) (34)
Net income {loss) before income taxes 15,280 4,310 (4,933)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 3,276 {195) (5,190)
Net income $12.004 54,505 $ 257

See accompanying nole to condensed financial statements.
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1CO, Ine. (Parent Company Only)
Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities: {Pollars in thousands)
Net income $12.004 $4.505 $257
Stock option compensation expense 857 673 679
Equity in subsidiary earnings (16,168) (5.017) 4,220
Changes in assets and liabilities providing/{requiring) cash:
Income taxes payable 2.847 2489 175
Deferred taxes 300 493 (1,931
Other (20) - -
Net cash provided by {uscd for) operating activitics (180) 3,143 3.400
Cash flows uscd for investing activitics;
[nvestment in subsidiary (254) (3.350) {3.543)
Net cash used for investing activities (254) (3,350) (3,543)
Cash flows provided by financing activities:
Common stock transactions 422 214 149
Net debt borrowings/(repayments) 12 {7) (6}
Net cash provided by financing activities 434 207 143
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 6 6 6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $6 36 36

See accompanying note to condensed financial statements.

F-35




JCO, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Note to Condensed Financial Statements

(1) Basis of Presentation

[CO, Inc. (the “Company™) is a holding company that conducts substantially all of its business operations through its
subsidiaries. Under the terms of agreements governing indebtedness of certain subsidiaries of the Company, such subsidiaries are
restricted from making dividend payments, loans or advances to the Company. These restrictions resulted in restricted net assets
(as defined in Rule 4-03(e}(3) of Regulation S-X) of the Company’s subsidiaries exceeding 25% of the consolidated net assets of
the Company and its subsidiaries. Accordingly, these condensed financial statements have been presented on a “parent company
only” basis. Under a parent company only presentation, the Company’s investment in its consolidated subsidiaries are presented
under the equity method of accounting.

The financial statements of ICO, Inc. (Parent Company Only) summarize the results of operations for the years ended
September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, The 1CO, Inc. (Parent Company Only) financial statements should be read in conjunction
with the 1CQ, Inc. consolidated financial statements.
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Classifications

Ycar ended September 30, 2006:

Allowance for uncolilectible accounts -
trade receivables

Deterred tax valuation allowance

Year ended September 30, 2005;

Allowance for uncollectible accounts -
trade receivables

Deferred tax valuption allowance

Year ended September 30, 2004:

Allowance for uncollectible accounts -
trade receivables

Deterred tax valuation allowance

ICO, Inc,
Schedule 11 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(in thousands)

Balance at Charged
Beginning (eredited) to Additions/ Balance at
of Year Expenses _ (Deductions) End of Year
$2.144 $555 $(190) $2.509
3,115 {842) - 2,273
$2,026 £310 $(192) $2,144
4,169 (1,054) — 3.L15
$2,047 $34 $(55) $2,026
6.269 (2.100) — 4,169
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